
The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (February 4, 2013) Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
FEBRUARY 4, 2013 

7:00 P.M. MEETING 
PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 

 
 

Mission Statement 
 

The City of Newberg serves its citizens, promotes safety, and maintains a healthy community. 
 

Vision Statement 
 

Newberg will cultivate a healthy, safe environment where citizens can work, play and grow in a friendly, 
dynamic and diverse community valuing partnerships and opportunity. 

 
 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
IV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT  
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

(30 minutes maximum, which may be extended at the Mayor’s discretion, with an opportunity to speak 
for no more than 5 minutes per speaker allowed) 

 
VI. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2013-3033 authorizing purchase of a new 
replacement Vactor 2100.  (Pgs. 3-8)

 
2. Consider a motion approving the December 17, 2012, City Council meeting minutes.  (Pgs. 9-18)
 
3. Consider a motion approving the January 7, 2013, City Council meeting minutes.  (Pgs. 19-24)
 

VII. CONTINUED BUSINESS 
 

Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2013-3028 approving the Public Works Collective 
Bargaining Agreement.  (Pgs. 25-82)

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

Page 1



The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 
p.m., unless approved by the Council. 
 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (February 4, 2013) Page 2 of 2 

 Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2013-3029 declaring Council District 3 position 
vacant.  (Pgs. 83-89) 

 
IX. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
 
X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City 
Recorder’s Office of any special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than 
48 business hours prior to the meeting.  To request these arrangements, please contact the City Recorder at (503) 537-1283. For TTY services please 
dial 711. 
 
 
 
Council accepts comments on agenda items during the meeting.  Fill out a form identifying the item you wish to speak on prior to the 
agenda item beginning and turn it into the City Recorder. The exception is land use hearings, which requires a specific public 
hearing process.  The City Council asks written testimony be submitted to the City Recorder before 4:30 p.m. on the preceding 
Wednesday.  Written testimony submitted after that will be brought before the Council on the night of the meeting for consideration 
and a vote to accept or not accept it into the record. 

 

Page 2



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3033 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: February 4, 2013 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2013-3033 

SUBJECT:  A resolution approving the purchase of 
a replacement Vactor 2100 from Owen Equipment 
Company in the amount of $359,176.00. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this  
Motion: Russ Thomas, Superintendant 
Dept.: Public Works Maintenance Division 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2013-3033. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The city currently owns a 1994 Vactor 2100 combination sewer cleaner on a 1994 Chevrolet Kodiak chassis. 
The 1994 Vactor is used on a daily basis for the high pressure water jetting and cleaning, solids and 
materials removal, and other maintenance activities of the 75 miles of wastewater collection system piping 
and over 32 miles of stormwater pipes and culverts.  In addition, the Vactor provides a non-invasive method 
to rapidly, safely, and easily perform vacuum excavation for water system maintenance and any other 
underground utility activities, such as potholing, and keyhole repairs.  Annual maintenance costs to keep the 
Vactor running are now averaging $10,000.00 per year due to its age and wear. 
 
The replacement Vactor 2100 combination sewer cleaner on a Freightliner chassis has numerous safety and 
operational improvements that will increase division efficiency and reduce operation and maintenance 
expenses.  See Attachment “A” for Vactor specifications.  Due to the high use demand by all sections of the 
public works maintenance division, the existing 1994 Vactor would be kept at this time and moved into a 
backup role, used primarily for vacuum excavation.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The adopted fiscal year 2012-2013 budget includes the cost of leasing a replacement Vactor, initially 
estimated at $350,000.00.  With funding available in the equipment replacement reserve account, it was 
determined more appropriate to save interest and fees by purchasing the Vactor outright at a final cost of 
$359,176.00. 
 
In order to do this, we will transfer the budgeted $350,000.00 from line item 32-5110.610500 to line item 
32-5110.610002 to accurately reflect the purchase versus lease of the replacement Vactor.  The difference of 
$9,176.00 will be absorbed within line item 32-5110.610002 which may postpone previously planned 
purchases to future fiscal years.  This movement between line items is consistent with and according to local 
budget law and the appropriation authority chosen by City Council.  
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 
This purchase will allow public works maintenance to lower vehicle operation and maintenance costs and 
increase operator safety and efficiencies.   

Page 3



VEHICLE SPECIFICATIONS/PRICING

2110P-18 Base Module:  PD Blower, 10 Yard Debris Body Capacity
1000 Gallon Water Capacity As Standard 196,930$                

Subtotal Base Module: 196,930$                
ITEM # STANDARD OPTIONS INCLUDED LIST

010PSTD
One Aluminum Toolbox (Weather Proof Lockable) 48x22X24 
Located Passenger Side on Subframe. (46849MW) Std on 
6x4 and 4x2 Models

STD

011PSTD Aluminum Fenders STD
012PSTD Mud Flaps STD
014PSTD Electric/Hydraulic Four Way Boom STD
016PSTD Color Coded Sealed Electrical System STD
018PSTD Remote Pendant Control With 35' Cord STD

019PSTD

Vansco-Electronic Package: Vactor Includes As Standard-
Chassis Tach, Blower Tach, Operating Mode, PTO Mode, 
Hydraulic Oil Temp Shutdown, (E-STOP-Turns Off Rodder 
Pump, Turns Off PTO A And PTO B, Shuts Off Aux Engine (if 
equipped), Sets Chassis Throttle Back To Idle. Disables 
Vacuum Opens Vacuum Disable). E-Stop Located @ Front 
Reel Controls, Rear Reel Controls, Pendant, Wireless Control 
(if equipped) and At Dump Control Location Machine 
Functions and Diagnostics (Chassis and Module)  

STD

020PSTD Double Acting Dump Hoist Cylinder STD
022PSTD 2" Y-Strainer With 25' Fill Hose STD

025PSTD Handgun Assy w/35' x 1/2" Hose With Quick Disconnects STD

026PSTD Ex-Ten Steel Cylindrical Debris Tank STD
030PSTD Flexible Hose Guide STD

032PSTD (3) Nozzles with Carbide Inserts with Nozzle Rack (1) 30° 
Sand,  (1) 30° Sanitary, (1) 15° Penetrator STD

045PSTD Suction Tube Storage: Curbside 2 Pipe, Rear Door 2 Pipe STD

046PSTD 1" Nozzle Pipe STD

1001PSTD Flat Rear Door w/Hydraulic Locks and Door Power Up, Power 
Down,  Open/Close Feature (NO GRABBER) STD

1005PSTD Dual 10" Stainless Steel Float Shut Off System/Rear 
Mounted In The Body STD

1016PSTD SS Microstrainer Prior to Blower STD
1024PSTD Debris Body Vacuum Relief System STD
1031PSTD Debris Deflector Plate STD
1032PSTD 48" Dump Height (w/1000 Gallon Capacity) STD
1033PSTD 60" Dump Height (w/1300 & 1500 Gallon Capacities) STD
2022PSTD Water Sight Gauge D/S & P/S STD
2023PSTD Liquid Float Level Indicator STD
3008PSTD Blower Air Shift Controls STD

4000PSTD 180 Degree Rotation Non Telescopic Boom, Front Loading 8" 
Suction Hose STD

4010PSTD Post Type Front Bumper Boom Storage  STD
5001PSTD 60 GPM Variable Flow Water System STD
5011PSTD 3" Y-Strainer @ Water Pump w/3" Drain Valve STD

Attachment "A" 
Page 1 of 4

Page 4



VEHICLE SPECIFICATIONS/PRICING

5012PSTD Performance Package: (Hyd Variable Flow, Dual PTO's, Dual 
Hyd Pumps) STD

5014PSTD Water Relief Valve, 1" STD
5015PSTD Midship Handgun Coupling STD

5019PSTD

AUXILIARY COOLING PACKAGE FOR CHASSIS ENGINE - 
System provides additional cooling for the chassis engine, by 
routing the chassis coolant through a heat exchanger. 
AVAILABLE ON IH MAXXFORCE ENGINES ONLY

STD

5022PSTD Side Mounted Water Pump STD
6000PSTD 400'x 1" Piranha Sewer Hose 2500 PSI STD
6004PSTD Hose Wind Guide (Dual Roller) STD

6005PSTD Hose Footage Counter Located Front Side Of Hose Reel-
Mechanical STD

6007PSTD Hose Reel Manual Hyd Extend/Retract STD
6009PSTD Hose Reel Chain Cover  (Full) STD

6020PBSTD 15" Hydraulic Telescoping & 270° Rotating Hose Reel (800'x 
1" Piranha or Aeroquip Capacity) w/ Dual Controls STD

7001PSTD Tachometer - Chassis Engine w/Hourmeter STD
7003PSTD HOURMETER FOR WATER PUMP OPERATION STD
7004PSTD HOURMETER FOR PTO OPERATION STD
7007PSTD Tachometer & Hourmeter - Blower STD
8000PSTD Circuit Breakers STD
8025PSTD Led Lights, Clearance, Back Up, Stop,Tail & Turn STD
9000PSTD 1+1 Vactor Manual-Partial Manual and CD Version STD
9002PSTD Tow Hooks, Front And Rear STD
9003PSTD Electronic Back-Up Alarm STD
P110STD Module Paint Wet-On-Wet  (DuPont) STD
S390ASTD 8" Vacuum Pipe Package STD
S560STD Emergency Flare Kit STD
S590STD Fire Extinguisher 5 Lbs. STD

ITEM #  DEBRIS TANK ACCESSORIES LIST
1003P DEBRIS BODY FLUSH OUT SYSTEM 1,387$                    
1004P DEBRIS BODY VACUUM RELIEF/LOAD LIMIT ALARM 1,910$                    

1008PE 6" KNIFE VALVE/REAR DOOR WITH CAMLOC LOCATED 
3:00 POSITION, AIR ACTUATED 1,735$                    

1014P CENTRIFUGAL SEPARATOR  REAR MOUNTED (PLUS 
STYLE) 4,851$                    

1015P FOLDING PIPE RACK/CURBSIDE 962$                       
1015PA FOLDING PIPE RACK/STREET SIDE 962$                       

1022P SPLASH SHIELD - BOLTED TO BODY FLANGE REAR 
DOOR 1,413$                    

1023P LUBE MANIFOLD (INCLUDES OPTIONS 1023PA) 2,097$                    
ITEM # WATER TANK ACCESSORIES LIST

2001P LOW WATER LIGHT AND ALARM AND WATER PUMP 
FLOW INDICATOR-GPM 597$                       

2006P AIR PURGE SYSTEM UTILIZING CHASSIS AIR SYSTEM 1,199$                    

Attachment "A" 
Page 2 of 4

Page 5



VEHICLE SPECIFICATIONS/PRICING

2016P

1300 GALLON WATER CAPACITY - ADDITIONAL ON 10 & 
12 YD UNITS
6X4 CHASSIS REQUIRED, WILL HAVE 60" DUMP HEIGHT 
(DEPENDING ON CHASSIS FRAME HEIGHT)

2,511$                    

ITEM # VACUUM SYSTEM ACCESSORIES LIST

3015PA
ELECTRONIC BLOWER ENGAGEMENT FRONT STATION 
CONTROL-FOR 3000 AND 4000 SERIES TRANSMISSIONS 
SERIES ALLISON.

2,910$                    

ITEM # BOOM ACCESSORIES LIST

4004P 8 FT. HYDRAULIC TELESCOPIC BOOM WITH 180 
DEGREE ROTATION 12,939$                  

4006P JOYSTICK CONTROL FOR BOOM FUNCTION (1) - FRONT 732$                       

4011PB

T300 OMNEX REMOTE CONTROL BELLY PACK - WIRED 
OR WIRELESS CAPABILITY. THIS SYSTEM WILL 
ACTIVATE ALL BOOM FUNCTIONS: UP, DOWN, LEFT, 
RIGHT, (IN & OUT IF SO EQUIPPED) VACUUM RELIEF 
ON/OFF, RODDER PUMP ON/OFF, THROTTLE UP/DOWN, 
E-STOP, HOSE REEL PAY IN/PAY OUT, HOSE REEL 
SPEED CONTROL, WATER PRESSURE CONTROL (IF 
REMOTE IS REQUIRED, YOU MUST SELECT THIS 
OPTION FOR A 5X5 BOOM)

2,857$                    

4013P ROTATABLE INLET HOSE ASSEMBLY, 
TELE/EXTENDABLE 534$                       

ITEM # HIGH PRESSURE WATER PUMP LIST

5002PA 80 GPM/2500 PSI WATER SYSTEM - ILO STD WATER 
SYSTEM  N/C 

5010P ACCUMULATOR SYSTEM FOR JET RODDER WATER 
SYSTEM 2,553$                    

5015P FRONT AND REAR HANDGUN COUPLERS 487$                       

5021P

HYDRO EXCAVATION KIT WITH RETRACTABLE REEL, 
50' X 3/8" HOSE, HANDGUN & PLUMBING 
(MUST HAVE OPTION #5010 ACCUMULATOR ON THE 
MACHINE) 
THIS IS NOT AVAILABLE ON CATCH BASIN UNITS

3,177$                    

ITEM # HOSE REEL ACCESSORIES LIST

6002PB - 487600' X 1" PIRANHA SEWER HOSE/2500 PSI (IN LIEU OF 
STD) 848$                       

6004PD PINCH ROLLER - 2100 SERIES ONLY - (INCLUDED IN 
6004PA & 6004PB) 1,314$                    

6005PD
DIGITAL HOSE COUNTER/ENGLISH OR METRIC (STD 
FRONT MECHANICAL HOSE FOOTAGE COUNTER WILL 
MOVE TO REAR) 

1,590$                    

6012P LATERAL CLEANING KIT WITH 150' HOSE AND 
NOZZLE/25 GPM, 2000 PSI 2,878$                    

6017P HYDRAULIC SHUT-OFF VALVES AT SUCTION, RETURN 
AND FILTER LINE (3) 875$                       

6019P RODDER PUMP DRAIN VALVES (2) 460$                       

ITEM # FRONT STATION AND IN CAB CONTROLS / LIGHT 
ACCESSORIES LIST

8001PE LED SPLIT ARROW TRAFFIC CONTROLLER
TWO PIECE 10 LED LIGHTS - REAR ONLY 1,485$                    

8003P HAND LIGHT WITH RETRACTABLE REEL 518$                       

Attachment "A" 
Page 3 of 4

Page 6



VEHICLE SPECIFICATIONS/PRICING

8020PE
FS DOT 3 - 6 LIGHT SYSTEM - ALL LED SYSTEM - 2 FED 
SIG MIRROR MOUNT STROBES, 2 MID-SHIP, 2 REAR 
MOUNTED OVAL LED QUAD FLASH STROBES

2,679$                    

8028P LED WORK LIGHTS (2) ON ALL BOOMS 722$                       
8029PB LED WORK LIGHT @ HOSE REEL MANHOLE (EACH) 607$                       

ITEM # CHASSIS ACCESSORIES LIST
9021P CAMERA SYSTEM, REAR CAMERA ONLY 1,590$                    

9023P SAFETY CONE STORAGE RACK/PLATE FOR DROP IN 
CONES 150$                       

ITEM # ALUMINUM TOOLBOXES AND TOOLTRAYS LIST

9070PA

46849MQ/16x12x18 FRONT BUMPER TOOLBOXES (2)
PD or FAN
4X2 & 6X4 CHASSIS
1000, 1300, 1500 GALLON CAPACITIES

1,826$                    

9071PA

46849NT/17W X 30H X 48D TOOLBOX
PD or FAN
6X4 CHASSIS ONLY
1000, 1300, 1500 GALLON CAPACITIES
Back of Cab Toolbox/Passenger Side Access - Exhaust 
position dependent

2,313$                    

9071PG

46849PM/18W x 36H x 26D TOOLBOX
PD or FAN
6X4 CHASSIS ONLY
1000, 1300, 1500 GALLON CAPACITIES
Rain Coat Style Mounted Behind Cab Driver Side Access

1,475$                    

ITEM # PAINT/DECALS LIST

P116 REAR DOOR STRIPE - REFLECTIVE TAPE (CHEVRON) 664$                       

P124STD VACTOR 2100 PLUS BODY DECAL / MULTI-COLORED  
(49601-D) STD

ITEM # SPECIAL OPTIONS LIST
Nozzle KEG Floor Cleaner 3,445$                    

Subtotal Options: 71,252$              
ITEM # CHASSIS LIST

Item #: Customer supplied
Make: Freightliner
Model: M2-114SD

106,000$                

Subtotal Chassis: 106,000$            

PRICING SUMMARY LIST
Base Module: 196,930$                

Options: 71,252$                  
Chassis: 106,000$                

Subtotal Base Module, Options and Chassis: 374,182$                
LESS discount: (15,006)$                

FINAL PRICE 359,176.00$     

Attachment "A" 
Page 4 of 4

Page 7



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3033 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3033 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TO PURCHASE A REPLACEMENT VACTOR 2100 FROM 
OWEN EQUIPMENT COMPANY IN THE AMOUNT OF $359,176.00 

 
RECITALS:  

 
1. The City of Newberg operates its Vactor to clean and maintain over 75 miles of wastewater lines and 

32 miles of storm lines and culverts within Newberg city limits. 
  
2. The 1994 Vactor is reaching the end of its serviceable life.  Over the years, improvements have been 

made to combination sewer cleaners (Vactors) that increase efficiency and improve operator safety.  
Replacement of the Vactor will allow staff to realize these improvements and continue to meet the 
maintenance needs of the City for the next fifteen years. 
 

3. The City entered into an Interagency Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with National Joint Powers 
Alliance (NJPA), effective March 20, 2012.  The NJPA agreement complies with Oregon Revised 
Statute (ORS) 279A, Public Contracts and Purchasing and the Newberg Municipal Code Chapter 
3.25, Purchasing and Contracting. 
 

4. The NJPA developed specifications and solicited bids.  Vactor Manufacturing, Inc was awarded the 
purchase contract for the Vactor 2100.  
 

5. The City selects Owen Equipment Company, the authorized dealer for Vactor Manufacturing Inc., to 
provide a new Vactor 2100 on a Freightliner chassis at a cost of $359,176.00. 

 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:  
1. The City Council acting as the Contract Review Board authorizes the city manager to enter into all 

contracts and agreements for the purchase of a replacement Vactor 2100 from Owen Equipment 
Company.  The city attorney will approve all contracts and agreements as to form and content. 
 

2. The City will purchase the Vactor outright by transferring the originally budgeted lease cost of 
$350,000.00 from line item 32-5110.610500 to line item 32-5110.610002 to accurately reflect the 
purchase versus lease of a replacement Vactor.  This movement between line items is consistent with 
and according to local budget law and the appropriation authority chosen by City Council.  

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: February 5, 2013. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 4th day of February 2013. 
 
________________________________ 
Daniel Danicic, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 7th day of February 2013. 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

Page 8



City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: February 4, 2013 
Order        Ordinance          Resolution              Motion  XX         Information ___ 
No.                   No.                        No. 
SUBJECT:    Approve the December 17, 2012, City 
Council Meeting minutes. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:  Jessica Nunley, Acting City 
Recorder 
Dept.:  Administration  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
Approve the December 17, 2012, City Council minutes, as amended, for preservation and permanent 
retention in the City’s historical records. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The City of Newberg City Council held a public meeting and minutes were recorded in text.  In accordance 
to Oregon State Records Management law, the City of Newberg must preserve these minutes in hard copy 
form for permanent retention. 
 
Staff received late testimony from Robert Soppe regarding the portrayal of his comments in the December 
17, 2012, City Council meeting minutes.  The December 17, 2012, minutes were subsequently pulled from 
the January 22, 2013, meeting for future consideration.  Mr. Soppe’s testimony is attached here as 
Attachment 1.  The minutes have been revised to incorporate Mr. Soppe’s testimony; new text added to the 
minutes is shown as underline, and deleted text is shown as strikethrough.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  
 
None. 

Page 9



1

Jessica Nunley

From: Robert Soppe [rs@compprobsolv.com]
Sent: Tuesday, January 22, 2013 5:15 PM
To: Jessica Nunley
Subject: Meeting minutes for 12/17/2012

Jessica: 
 
                I do not expect to attend tonight’s Council Meeting but wanted to add a couple of things to the meeting 
minutes.  In the Public Comments section I made some comments about accuracy of meeting minutes and resolutions.  
While what is in the minutes is accurate, something far more important was excluded.  My quote (taken from listening 
to the audio) is: 
 
“The other half of the issue has to do with the text of the resulting Resolution, Order, or Ordinance.  I would suggest that 
Council establish a policy that if the motion is intended to result in such an action, it should appear exactly as voted 
upon and documented in the minutes  with no subsequent editing by Staff.  I don’t think that should be a large burden.”
 
                I thought this point to be more important than was recorded in the minutes.  It concerned me then (and still 
does) that Council appears to be dismissing this issue. 
 

My second comment is a minor correction.  The minutes have me saying: “.. even though they do not always 
share goals”.  The actual quote (again, from the audio) was: “I may not share the same views that you do…”.  I believe 
we DO share the same goals; it is our views of how to get there that I see as different. 
 
 
 
Robert Soppe 
Computer Problem Solvers 
(503) 538-5495 
rs@compprobsolv.com 

Attachment 1

Page 10



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (December 17, 2012) Page 1 of 7 

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
Monday, December 17, 2012, 7:00 PM 

Public Safety Building (401 E. Third Street) 
 

A work session was held prior to the meeting.  A presentation was given by Jim Whitty of ODOT regarding 
New Road Financing Models.  Councilors and the Mayor were present with Councilor Bart Rierson absent 
(excused); no action was taken and no decisions were made. 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

 
Mayor Bob Andrews called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM. 
 
II. ROLL CALL 
 
Members Present: Mayor Bob Andrews Denise Bacon Ryan Howard 
 Stephen McKinney  Marc Shelton Wade Witherspoon 
 
Members Absent: Bart Rierson (Excused) 
 
Staff Present: Daniel Danicic, City Manager Terrence Mahr, City Attorney 
 Janelle Nordyke, Finance Director Barton Brierley, Planning and Building Director 
 Elaina Canutt, Financial Analyst  Paul Chiu, Senior Engineer 
  Lee Elliot, Assistant City Manager  Jessica Nunley, Acting City Recorder 
  Mandy Dillman, Minutes Recorder 
 
Others Present: Charles Zickefoose, Robert Soppe  
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
IV. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Daniel Danicic, city manager, reported the Newberg Volunteer Fire Fighter Association are working hard 
with Fred Meyer to provide toys for underprivileged children in our city.  To date they have spent three and a 
half hours shopping and a total of $13,722.00 on 1,291 items, which took 36 shopping carts and resulted in a 
receipt that was 74 feet and 2 inches long.  All the toys are currently being wrapped at Station 20.  The Critter 
Cabana fundraiser held at the Cultural Center tonight was well over their $5000.00 goal when Mr. Danicic left 
to come to the council meeting.  
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Robert Soppe listened to the audio from the last meeting and thanked Councilor Bart Rierson for raising the 
issue regarding accuracy of resolutions and motions and noting their importance.  Mr. Soppe stated the other 
half of the issue has to do with the text of the resulting Resolution, Order, or Ordinance.  He suggests Council 
establish a policy that if the motion is intended to result in such an action, it should appear exactly as voted 
upon and documented in the minutes with no subsequent editing by staff.  He does not think having the recorder 
read back motions would be a burden.  He thanked the two departing council members for their service; even 
though they do he may not always share the same views, he is appreciative of their work.  
 
VI. COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 

Page 11



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (December 17, 2012) Page 2 of 7 

 
1. Consider appointing Rick Rogers and Thomas Barnes to the Newberg Urban Area Management 

Commission serving terms expiring December 31, 2015. 
 
MOTION:    Shelton/McKinney appointing Rick Rogers and Thomas Barnes to the Newberg Urban Area 
Management Commission serving terms expiring December 31, 2015. Motion carried (6 Yes/0 No/1 Absent 
[Rierson]). 
 

2. Consider appointing Gary Bliss and Jason Dale to the Newberg Planning Commission serving 
terms expiring December 31, 2015. 

 
MOTION:    Bacon/Howard appointing Gary Bliss and Jason Dale to the Newberg Planning Commission 
serving terms expiring December 31, 2015. Motion carried (6 Yes/0 No/1 Absent [Rierson]). 
 

3. Consider appointing Ronald Johns, Jay (Greg) Martin, and Suzanne Stich to the Traffic Safety 
Commission serving terms expiring December 31, 2015. 

 
MOTION:    Witherspoon/Bacon appointing Ronald Johns, Jay (Greg) Martin, and Suzanne Stich to the 
Traffic Safety Commission serving terms expiring December 31, 2015. Motion carried (6 Yes/0 No/1 Absent 
[Rierson]). 
 
VII. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

1. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2012-3025 accepting the canvass of votes for the 
November 6, 2012, Biennial General Election. 

 
2. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2012-3027 approving funds for a contract 

administrator position for the new animal shelter facility. 
 

3. Consider a motion approving the October 1, 2012, November 5, 2012, and November 19, 2012, 
City Council meeting minutes. 

 
Mayor Andrews pulled Resolution No. 2012-3027 from consideration.  
 
MOTION:    Howard/Bacon adopting Resolution No. 2012-3025 accepting the canvass of votes for the 
November 6, 2012, Biennial General Election and approving the October 1, 2012, November 5, 2012, and 
November 19, 2012, City Council meeting minutes, as amended. Motion carried (6 Yes/0 No/1 Absent 
[Rierson]). 
 
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

Consider a motion adopting Ordinance No. 2012-2757 adopting a new nonexclusive cable 
system franchise with Comcast of Oregon II, Inc. 
(Legislative Hearing) 

TIME – 7:15 PM 
 
Terry Mahr, city attorney, presented the staff report (see official meeting packet for full report).   
 
Councilor Ryan Howard asked why they removed the requirement of having a customer service location within 
15 miles.  Currently there are two; however, if they are not required they may close, especially if everything is 

Page 12



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (December 17, 2012) Page 3 of 7 

moved online.  Mr. Mahr replied it gives companies more options for delivery and makes it much easier for 
installation.  For example, instead of someone coming to install your cable they can now mail the box to you 
and you can plug it in.  You also do not need to go to a customer service location to make a payment anymore, 
you can do it online.  Councilor Howard mentioned he would like assurance there would be a customer service 
location nearby.  Mayor Bob Andrews replied there are existing locations from previous franchise requirements.  
 
Councilor Marc Shelton asked Mr. Danicic if the Public and Education Government (PEG) channel was able to 
move ahead of the three year anniversary or if they would need to wait until then to consider it.  Mr. Danicic 
replied the PEG could go ahead.  Councilor Shelton suggested other issues may come up at the three year 
anniversary and perhaps they should bring the issue up with Comcast before then.  Mr. Mahr answered they do 
have the opportunity; it is not necessary to wait the full three years. Councilor Shelton mentioned that PEG is 
included with both Frontier and Comcast. 
 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance No. 2012-2757. 
 
MOTION:    Shelton/Bacon adopting Ordinance No. 2012-2757 adopting a new nonexclusive cable 
system franchise with Comcast of Oregon II, Inc. Motion carried (6 Yes/0 No/1 Absent [Rierson]). 
 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2012-3026 accepting the 2011-2012 Fiscal Year 
Budget Audit. 

TIME – 7:23 PM 
 
Janelle Nordyke, finance director, and Elaina Canutt, financial analyst, presented the staff report accompanied 
by a PowerPoint presentation (see official meeting packet for full report).  Staff recommends approval of 
Resolution No. 2012-3026. 
 
Councilor Howard asked where the extra $15.00 per thousand is coming from.  Ms. Janelle Nordyke, finance 
director, replied debt is not subject to compression.  Ms. Elaina Canutt, financial analyst, mentioned school 
districts do have compression in their ranks.  Ms. Nordyke said they are subject to $5.00. 
 
Councilor Howard asked if the financing of debt is paid for by property taxes.  Ms. Canutt replied it is.  
Councilor Howard asked for clarification if there is an allocation of the $15.00 per thousand to cover the debts.  
He also asked if they are local option debts.  Ms. Nordyke answered the city of Newberg has general obligation 
debt and city hall was built that way as well.  Ms. Nordyke added it is only excluded from the caps if it is 
construction related, however, if it is operating related it can fall into the compression.  Ms. Canutt said the city 
does not have any local option levies.  
 
Councilor Shelton asked if auditors are chosen by bid.  Ms. Nordyke replied they are and also by committee 
through a bid process.  Councilor Shelton asked how much longer we have with these auditors.  Ms. Nordyke 
said we have one year and then we would be looking for qualified municipal auditors.  Councilor Shelton 
wondered how many accounts our auditors do.  Ms. Nordyke mentioned they are located in Salem and audit 
many schools and municipalities, including Yamhill County and Dundee.  Mayor Andrews asked if it would be 
strictly fiscal or a performance audit, or if it is done in two parts.  Ms. Nordyke replied it is strictly financial and 
a compliance audit would be separate. 
 
MOTION:    Howard/Shelton to adopting Resolution No. 2012-3026 accepting the 2011-2012 Fiscal Year 
Budget Audit. Motion carried (6 Yes/0 No/1 Absent [Rierson]). 
 

Page 13



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (December 17, 2012) Page 4 of 7 

2. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2012-3020 considering the formation of the College 
Street Local Improvement District and directing staff to prepare an engineer’s report. 

TIME – 7:06 PM 
 
Lee Elliot, assistant city manager, and Paul Chiu, senior engineer, presented the staff report accompanied by a 
PowerPoint presentation (see official meeting packet for full report).  Staff recommends approval of Resolution 
No. 2012-3020. 
 
Councilor Howard asked if the separate cost of sidewalk and gutter improvements would be approximately 
$120,000.00.  Mr. Paul Chiu, senior engineer, answered it would be.  Councilor Howard further questioned if it 
would be reduced by grant funding.  Mr. Chiu replied they would be receiving $800,000.00 in grant funding to 
do whatever is necessary for this project, not just sidewalk and gutter improvements.   
 
Councilor Shelton referred to a property in the meeting packet and asked if Oregon Department of 
Transportation (ODOT) is negotiating with them for right-of-way purchase with waivers.  Councilor Shelton 
expressed concern of what would come about if only 25% of the cost could be recovered.  Mr. Chiu clarified 
they will be looking at right-of-way and Local Improvement District (LID) portions separately so as not to 
complicate it, and more than likely it will not be 100% guaranteed on the right-of-way variables.  
 
Councilor Shelton asked several questions about the time frame of the project and if they would be returning to 
council with an engineering report and data.  Mr. Chiu replied they could come back with data if the council 
desired.  The next step would be a hearing sometime in the spring, depending on the engineers report and LID 
configuration, to allow the public to comment.  The right-of-way acquisition will be in January, 2014, and the 
project will start sometime in February, 2014, according to ODOT’s schedule.  Council should come to a 
decision on the LID this summer in order to be prepared.  
 
Councilor Howard asked what the extra $70,000.00 will be going towards if it is not intended for curbs and 
sidewalks.  Mr. Chiu said it will be used for storm drainage, water treatment for runoff, and placing conduits in 
open ditches.  Councilor Howard asked if the money beyond the $120,000.00 would be used for striping bike 
lanes and other things.  Mr. Chiu replied it would be used for that as well as design and construction.  
 
Councilor Shelton asked if they could go down to a minimum of a 10.2% match if the bid price comes in lower 
than expected.  Mr. Chiu said the standard of providing a little more than the minimum is common practice to 
make the project attractive.  Councilor Shelton further inquired on the process if they go out to bid and do not 
have enough to cover the project because of lack of grant money.  Mr. Danicic answered the final estimate is 
done after construction is complete and if costs come in lower they can extend the project and utilize more 
funds.  
 
Mayor Andrews advised staff to put in a companion grant request for Aldercrest Drive to Foothills Drive 
improvements, and any savings from this project can potentially be used for the continuation. 
 
Mayor Andrews opened public testimony.  
 
Mr. Soppe stated last time Council heard the matter there was consideration of putting a higher burden on 
property owners with waivers as compared to those without. Some concerns were raised regarding the 
appropriateness of this.  He suggested a very minimal interpretation of this.  The property owners who have 
waivers gain a greater benefit from the LID than those without waivers.  Before the execution of the LID those 
owners have a clear financial responsibility for the improvement. The burden is removed when the 
improvement is completed. The value of the removal of this more definite responsibility can be estimated and 
used to justify allocating a slightly higher cost to these property owners.  Mr. Soppe agreed with a sentiment 
raised at a prior meeting that it would be unfair to give one neighborhood a perk the city was not offering to 
others. Even considering scenario 1A where 100% is recouped the property owners are receiving a 75% benefit 

Page 14



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (December 17, 2012) Page 5 of 7 

due to the grant. This is a perk that will not typically be offered to other property owners or developers, but 
seems fair because of the grant, which is a special opportunity. To offer an even greater perk by collecting 
scenarios B, C, and D, seems unfair. He wonders who would be reimbursing the SDC fund if it were used here 
and why it is more appropriate for those people to shoulder the burden.   
 
Mr. Charles Zickefoose, a member of the Newberg First Presbyterian Church, expressed several objections to 
financial charges they will face if this project is approved.  The church was required to put in a sidewalk when 
they added onto their building.  The sidewalk terminates at the property line, making it unusable, and 
pedestrians favor the wide shoulder on the other side of the street to their sidewalk.  The current sidewalk cost 
$4,243.00 to build and this proposed project requires them to remove it and replace it with a new sidewalk.  
According to Exhibit “A”, they are the highest assessed property of the project with waiver rights.  They want 
to do their share as a non-profit, but feel it is out of proportion to require them to do this.   
 
Councilor Shelton suggested the issue is not just the current sidewalk but the access to the parking lot as well.  
Mr. Zickefoose replied he has not heard what will happen there.  Councilor Shelton expressed concern the 
improvements will reduce access to the parking lot and will push traffic onto Mission Street.  Mr. Zickefoose 
stated he had contacted Mr. Chiu for information regarding the issue and has not heard back from him.  Mr. 
Chiu said he intends to get together with Mr. Zickefoose to discuss in detail the intricacy of the property.  
Typically sidewalks are built to the elevation of the middle of the road, and unfortunately their sidewalk was not 
built to that standard.  They recognize the situation the church is in and will decide what is fair when the time 
comes; however, they are not ready to address this issue yet.   
 
Councilor Shelton stressed the importance of maintaining access to both College Street and Mission Street for 
the church itself and for Veritas School, which creates traffic issues every day of the week.  Mr. Chiu said they 
will be looking into all possible situations.  
 
Councilor Stephen McKinney asked if $9,000.00 will be paid for the acquisition of the far right hand corner of 
the church property.  Mr. Chiu said yes.  Councilor McKinney informed Mr. Zickefoose this might mitigate 
their expense in having to rebuild the sidewalk.   
 
Councilor Wade Witherspoon encouraged Mr. Chiu to think creatively in regards to removal of the sidewalk 
and perhaps they may be able to incorporate it to save the church some money.  Mr. Chiu said he is in favor of 
saving the sidewalk; however, it has drainage issues due to its elevation so he is not optimistic about saving it. 
 
Councilor Denise Bacon asked if there was a way to discount the cost of sidewalk replacement since the city did 
not know the project was going to happen.  Mr. Danicic replied they will recognize the cost difference between 
the old sidewalk and the new one and will not expect them to pay the full price again.  Once staff comes back 
with assessment information, each property owner will be notified and allowed to comment.  
  
Mr. Zickefoose explained they did not match the elevation of the sidewalk to the middle of the road because 
pedestrians would have had to step up onto a sidewalk that goes nowhere.   
 
Staff summarized the options from the staff report.  
 
MOTION:    Shelton/Bacon adopting Resolution No. 2012-3020 considering the formation of the College 
Street Local Improvement District and directing staff to prepare an engineer’s report.  
 
Councilor McKinney understands Mr. Soppe’s concern that option A1 will cause a substantial decrease in 
obligation to perform this project and allows for a group of citizens to get a major perk. Less than 100% could 
be preferential treatment; however, judging from the figures he will support the motion.  
 

Page 15



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (December 17, 2012) Page 6 of 7 

Councilor Howard feels that covering some percent for sidewalk and curb improvement, engineering, 
construction, and striping on the roads could be fairly portioned to land owners.  
 
Councilor Shelton regrets the decision to increase the cities match by ten percent to make the grant more 
attractive.  He feels they could have obtained the grant without the original number.  He supports the council 
concept of fairness and equity for citizens.  
 
Mayor Andrews stated it may be a potential conflict of interest for him to comment since he is a member of the 
church; however, he agrees with Councilors McKinney and Shelton.  He also feels the church will receive some 
mitigation in regards to redoing their sidewalk.  
 
VOTE: Shelton/Bacon adopting Resolution No. 2012-3020 considering the formation of the College 
Street Local Improvement District and directing staff to prepare an engineer’s report based on option 1A as 
shown in Exhibit “A”. Motion carried (6 Yes/0 No/1 Absent [Rierson]). 
 
IX. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
TIME – 8:31 PM 
 
Mr. Danicic began discussion on the South Industrial Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) amendment.  The goal is 
to come back in January with items to adopt.  Mr. Barton Brierley, planning and building director, reported the 
county commissioners asked the city to adopt the county population forecast and consider dividing the 
application into two parts to avoid an appeal.  They discussed dividing the application with property owners in 
the area and they feel the application should be submitted as is, and dividing it would not comply with state 
laws.  Councilor McKinney asked if there was any objection to adopting the population forecast, if the division 
was a compromise of geography, and how it was proposed to be divided.  Mr. Brierley replied there is no 
objection to adopting the population forecast and they did not specify how to divide the application.  
 
Mayor Andrews asked how defensible dividing the UGB proposal would be with regard to state laws.  Mr. 
Brierley answered dividing along the lines proposed by Friends of Yamhill County would not be defensible.   
 
Councilor Shelton asked how defensible was the total acreage Commissioner Mary Stern suggested to 
compromise with Friends of Yamhill County.  He thought they may have suggested breaking up the application 
in order to get the total acreage desired.  Mr. Brierley feels the application is very defensible.   It is the courts 
job to make sure the numbers are based on facts, and appeals should be based on facts, not on if they disagree 
with your number.  He mentioned reducing the acreage will not improve defensibility of the application.   
 
Councilor Witherspoon asked if tonight staff was looking for guidance on whether they should include the 
population forecast and whether to move forward on the application as one piece.  Mr. Brierley said that is 
correct, they are looking for council’s opinion.  Councilor Witherspoon, Mayor Andrews, and Councilor 
Howard all said they are in agreement with adding the population forecast but not on splitting the application.  
 

Page 16



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (December 17, 2012) Page 7 of 7 

X. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:51 PM.  
 

ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this 22nd day of January, 2013. 
 
 

    _______________________________ 
     Daniel Danicic, City Recorder 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 24th day of January, 2013. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor  

Page 17



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 18



City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: February 4, 2013 
Order        Ordinance          Resolution              Motion  XX         Information ___ 
No.                   No.                        No. 
SUBJECT:    Approve the January 7, 2013, City 
Council Meeting minutes. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion:  Norma Alley, City Recorder 
Dept.:  Administration  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

 
Approve City Council minutes for preservation and permanent retention in the City’s historical records. 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The City of Newberg City Council held a public meeting and minutes were recorded in text.  In accordance 
to Oregon State Records Management law, the City of Newberg must preserve these minutes in hard copy 
form for permanent retention. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
None. 
 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  
 
None. 

Page 19



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (January 7, 2013) Page 1 of 4 

CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 
JANUARY 7, 2013 
7:00 P.M. MEETING 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 
 
Executive Session was held with all councilors, the mayor, city manager, and city attorney present; no action 
was taken and no decisions were made. 
 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Bob Andrews called the meeting to order at 7:02 PM. 
 
II. ADMINISTRATION OF OATH OF OFFICES 
 
Judge Terry Mahr swore in councilor-elects Lesley Woodruff and Mike Corey. 
 
III. ROLL CALL 
 
Members Present: Mayor Bob Andrews Denise Bacon Ryan Howard 
 Bart Rierson  Lesley Woodruff Mike Corey 
 Stephen McKinney  
 
Members Absent:  
 
Staff Present: Daniel Danicic, City Manager Terrence Mahr, City Attorney 
 Lee Elliot, Assistant City Manager Jessica Nunley, Acting City Recorder 
 Mandy Dillman, Minutes Recorder  
 
Others Present: Jackie Lang, Riverbend Communications Director  
    
 
IV. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
V. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Daniel Danicic, city manager, reported great things are in store for the coming year and he is looking 
forward to what 2013 will bring for Newberg.  
 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Mayor Andrews opened and closed the public testimony as there was no one to testify. 
 
VII. ELECTION OF COUNCIL PRESIDENT 
 

Consider a motion electing a Council President from among the City Council. 
 

MOTION: Howard/Bacon electing Bart Rierson as Council President. Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 
 
VIII. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Page 20



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (January 7, 2013) Page 2 of 4 

 
 Consider a motion approving the October 22, 2012, November 26, 2012, December 3, 2012, and 

December 10, 2012, City Council meeting minutes. 
 

MOTION: Rierson/Howard approving the October 22, 2012, November 26, 2012, December 3, 2012, and 
December 10, 2012, City Council meeting minutes.  Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 

 
IX. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Mayor Andrews opened and closed public hearings as there was no one to testify.  
 
X. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Consider a motion adopting Resolution No. 2012-3028 approving the Public Works Collective 
Bargaining Agreement. 

TIME – 7:17 PM 
 
Mr. Terrence Mahr, city attorney, explained the process which will take place when the motion is adopted.  
Tonight’s decision is just tentative and then the motion would come before council again in February for 
signatures and approval. 
 
Councilor Ryan Howard mentioned he is uncomfortable with where this agreement has gone.  He will approve 
the concept as a two year agreement, but in the future he sees the need to cut services or raise rates in order for 
the city to continue functioning appropriately.  
 
Mayor Bob Andrews explained he has expressed concern about some of the verbiage before; however, he has 
no issue with the fiscal side of the contract and will be approving the motion.  He asked Mr. Mahr if they will 
not be adopting the resolution but only their agreement of the concept.  Mr. Mahr replied he was correct. 
 
MOTION: McKinney/Bacon to approve the agreement between the city and the Public Works Union 
represented by AFSCME in concept and direct staff to return the final written contract for formal approval and 
signature on February 4, 2013.  Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 
 

2. Waste Management, Inc. and Riverbend presentation.   
TIME – 7:23 PM 
 
Jackie Lang, Riverbend Communication Director, handed out materials and gave a presentation (see official 
meeting packet for full report). 
 
Councilor Howard asked how many pounds of recycling they receive at Riverbend.  Ms. Lang replied they 
receive 500,000 pounds of recycling per year.  She mentioned it is an improvement and most trash goes through 
a recycling program.  She explained they are working with the Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) 
and others to make community education programs, fliers in multiple languages that are easy to understand, and 
good, convenient containers to make recycling easy in schools and homes. 
 
Councilor Howard asked how much money is set aside for closure of the landfill and when they will stop 
funding the closure.  Ms. Lang said that $12,000,000.00 is in a series of funds set aside by law to make sure the 
closure happens, to protect the environment.  Resources will be used to manage the site for thirty years after the 
closure.  Councilor Howard inquired about what maintenance will be done over the thirty years.  Ms. Lang 
replied resources will be spent to cap the landfill, add soil and grass to blend it into the natural terrain, and to get 
the gas and water out of the landfill.  Once they reach the thirty year mark they will consult with DEQ to decide 

Page 21



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (January 7, 2013) Page 3 of 4 

if it will need future management.  Councilor Howard asked if there will continue to be volatile impacts on the 
environment after the thirty year mark.  Ms. Lang assured the council they will be following standard 
requirements and expectations and the landfill will be inert after thirty years with little or no risk to the 
environment in the future.  Councilor Howard mentioned several e-mails from concerned citizens and asked 
Ms. Lang if their understanding of the landfill project is not correct and if their concerns are valid.  Ms. Lang 
replied that she has been speaking with one citizen in particular and several experts to explore their concerns.  
This citizen discovered incorrect paperwork, which was very helpful, and mostly they are in disagreement on 
interpretations.  They have dedicated significant resources in expertise to better understand citizen concerns.  
 
Councilor Denise Bacon asked how many years the proposed berm will give the landfill.  Ms. Lang replied they 
are expecting two years, however it depends on diversion.  Councilor Bacon expressed concern about the 
amount of money being spent for an extension of just two years.  She asked what type of new technology they 
are putting into the project to get them two extra years.  Ms. Lang said the proposed $12,000,000.00 will do 
much more than just cover the cost of the berm.  Two years is a short amount of time but it is intended to be a 
bridge to new technology and will help clarify a longer extension that has not been proposed yet.   
 
Mayor Andrews asked about the recycling portion.  Ms. Lang replied they have received important feedback 
about the Riverbend project and are hearing they are not doing enough to make recycling readily available or 
easy at the landfill.  They have corporate funding now and a brand new public drop off recycling area at the 
landfill.  Mayor Andrews asked where the money from landfill usage fees is placed.  Ms. Lang said historically 
it goes into the solid waste budget; however, this year Yamhill County commissioners will put it into the 
general fund as well as other areas.  
 
Ms. Ilsa Perse, president of Waste Not of Yamhill County, the official arm of the Stop the Dump Coalition, 
thanked the mayor for allowing her to speak.  She explained 40% of the garbage in Yamhill County is recycled, 
which means 60% more could be.  She feels there should be no work done on the landfill until the new 
recycling center is built in order to keep recyclables out of the landfill.  She noticed only 1% of the proposed 
project is on planned diversion and Yamhill County has no push for recycling except a couple of dumpsters.  
Ms. Perse explained her main concern is the viability of the berm when a future earthquake happens.  The berm 
is only rated for an 8.5 earthquake and recent data shows the next large one will be 9.0 or larger.  She has sent a 
letter to DEQ to urge them to get on board with agencies talking about the large earthquake.  Councilor Howard 
asked what concerns they face should the earthquake destroy the berm.  Ms. Perse explained the berm faces 
Highway 18 and is holding back millions of tons of garbage which will have a huge liquefaction issue when the 
infrastructure collapses.  Councilor Howard asked how they propose waste be diverted and mentioned that 
pulling recycling out of the garbage requires a lot of extra work.   Ms. Perse said it depends on what is legally 
required.  She gave an example of the Bay Area where 75-85% of waste is recycled; garbage rates are higher 
which drives people to recycle more.  Another example she gave was New York, where garbage is stored in 
clear bags so you can see what is being thrown away and citizens are charged for throwing away recyclables.  
She also explained green energy made from landfills is a conundrum because the methane created by the 
garbage and used for energy is bad for the environment. (See official meeting packet for handout). 
 
Ms. Susan Meredith, member of Waste Not Stop the Dump Coalition, read a statement on Waste Management’s 
website saying DEQ had approved the berm and public comment was underway.  She was shocked because 
their coalition is in direct conversation with DEQ and had not been notified it was approved.  When they called 
DEQ they were informed the statement was not true.  She wondered who gave consent for Waste Management 
to write untrue statements.  
 
XI. COUNCIL BUSINESS 
TIME – 7:55 PM 
 

1. Letter to city council from Newberg Historical Society. 
 

Page 22



 
 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (January 7, 2013) Page 4 of 4 

Mayor Andrews summarized the letter is asking the council to take action on having Newberg become a 
Certified Local Government.  Mayor Andrews asked staff to follow up and determine exactly what they are 
asking.  Councilor McKinney mentioned a similar petition years ago which complicated zoning laws and he 
suggested overlays could possibly help correct zoning issues.  Mr. Danicic replied he thought it might be related 
to the Main Street Program which does not require establishing zoning for structures, but does require 
establishing standards for developments.   
 

2. Letters from Chehalem Valley Middle School students. 
 
Mayor Andrews brought up a concern about students using abbreviated names instead of their full name when 
writing persuasive letters to the council and Mayor.  He mentioned he will be contacting the school to use the 
letters as a teaching instrument for the students.  
 

3. Notice of town hall meeting. 
 
Mr. Danicic informed the council Senator Ron Wyden will be coming to Station 20 at 9:00 AM on January 10, 
2012.   
 

4. Coastal Parkway. 
 
Councilor McKinney mentioned he had received many phone calls lobbying about the alternate bypass 
proposal.  He said he responded briefly to them.  
 
XII. ADJOURNMENT 
TIME – 8:21 PM 
 

ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this 4th day of February, 2013. 
 
 

    _______________________________ 
     Daniel Danicic, City Recorder 
 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 7th day of February, 2013. 
 
 
__________________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor  
 
 
 

Page 23



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 24



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3028 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: February 4, 2013 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2013-3028 

SUBJECT:  Ratify Public Works Collective Bargaining 
Agreement effective upon execution, except for first 
year COLA, which is retroactive to January 1, 2013.  

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Dawn Wilson 
Dept.: City Attorney’s Office 

 
HEARING TYPE:  No public hearing is required. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2013-3028 to ratify the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the City and the 
Public Works Union who is represented by American Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees 
(“AFSCME”). 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
The City management team has been negotiating with the Public Works Union and AFSCME representatives 
(the “Union”) for initial unionization and contract. That contract period is from execution of the contract, 
which will be in February of 2013 through December 31, 2014. The contract period has been negotiated to 
be offset from the collective bargaining contracts with police and fire unions. The City has been notified that 
the Union members on December 19, 2012, have ratified the tentative Collective Bargaining Agreement 
(“Agreement”). The duration of the agreement is for approximately two (2) years. The COLA for the first 
year of the contract will be retroactive to January 1, 2013. 
 
The areas of economic impact in the contract are wages (COLA, Merit, and wage-driven benefits) and an 
increase to on-call pay, which are summarized as follows:  
 

• Wages: Cost of living (COLA), merit increases, and wage-driven benefits have been estimated under 
Fiscal Impact. 

 
o 2.5% COLA first year; 2% COLA second year + $275.00 one-time "signing bonus" 

(signing bonus to be paid on November 30, 2013). 
 

• On-call pay: Changed from $15.00/day to $25.00/day.  
 
Note: A maximum 3% increase for each year was used in Fiscal Impact calculations. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
The following table outlines what the estimated fiscal impact will be with accepting the Public Works 
Collective Bargaining Agreement by year, by fund, and by category.  The Public Works Union members are 
covered under the Newberg Employee Retirement Plan (NERPS). 
 

Page 25



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3028 PAGE 2 

 
 Original   2012-13  

   Union Payroll  2012-13   Budget   2013-14   2014-15   2015-16  

Wages Union  
     

1,504,531  
     

1,519,006       1,566,005  
     

1,630,091  
     

1,696,902  
Wage Driven Benefits (FICA,  
 NERPS) 

        
503,343  

        
508,457          553,229  

        
623,263  

        
649,229  

Health Insurance-Union 
        

443,165  
        

447,671          487,482  
        

536,230  
        

589,853  

Total Union Payroll 
     

2,451,039  
     

2,475,133       2,606,716  
     

2,789,584  
     

2,935,983  

      
  Net Increased Costs Per Year 

 

          
24,094          131,583  

        
182,868  

        
146,399  

 - effective January 1, 2013 
     

      
Detail of Change Per Category 

 
2012-13 

 
2013 

 
2014 2015 

Change in Wages (COLA and Merit increases) 
             

9,514             51,960  
           

64,087  
           

66,810  

Change in Wage Driven Benefits (FICA, NERPS) 
             

7,721             42,165  
           

70,033  
           

25,966  

Change in Health Insurance (Employer match) 
             

6,859             37,458  
           

48,748  
           

53,623  

Net Change Per Category 
 

           
24,094          131,583  

        
182,868  

        
146,399  

      
Estimate of Union Increased costs Per Fund 2012-13 

 
2013 22014 

 
2015 

Fund 2 - Streets 
 

             
2,369             10,655  

           
17,321  

           
13,849  

Fund 6 - Wastewater 
 

             
9,704             53,589  

           
73,834  

           
59,070  

Fund 7 - Water 
 

             
6,778             40,170  

           
52,952  

           
42,820  

Fund 17 - Stormwater 
 

             
3,299             16,569  

           
24,027  

           
19,074  

Fund 31 - Fleet and Facilities 
 

             
1,944             10,600  

           
14,734  

           
11,586  

Total Estimated Union Increase by Fund 
           

24,094          131,583  
        

182,868  
        

146,399  
 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 
 
In the interest of the community, the contract ensures that valuable and long-term employees are retained.  
By the City guaranteeing certain fiscal benefits, experienced employees will receive a fair compensation for 
their public works services.  

Page 26



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3028 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3028 
 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE COLLECTIVE BARGAINING 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY AND THE PUBLIC WORKS UNION 
(AFSCME); AGREEMENT WILL BE EFFECTIVE UPON EXECUTION, 
EXCEPT FOR FIRST YEAR OF COLA IS RETROACTIVE TO JANUARY 1, 
2013; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
THE AGREEMENT; AND DELEGATING THE AUTHORITY TO THE CITY 
MANAGER TO MAKE AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS OF THE 
AGREEMENT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY   

 
 

RECITALS: 
  

1. City staff has been negotiating with the Public Works Union through their stewards and Oregon 
AFSCME Council 75 (“AFSCME”) representatives (the “Union”) for the new contract period 
beginning upon execution (approximately February of 2013) through December 31, 2014. 
 

2. The City has been notified that the Union members on December 19, 2012, have ratified the 
Collective Bargaining Agreement (“Agreement”). 
 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The City approves the Agreement between the City and the Union with this initial contract, which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and by this reference incorporated. 
 

2. The initial contract period will be from the date of execution (February of 2013) of Agreement 
through December 31, 2014, except the first year COLA is retroactive to January 1, 2013.  
 

3. The mayor and city manager are authorized to execute the Agreement with the Union on behalf of 
the City.  
 

4. The city manager is further delegated the authority to approve minor amendments to the Agreement; 
interpret language of the Agreement on behalf of the City; enter into memorandums of 
understandings concerning the interpretations and disputes arising under the Agreement; and 
negotiate settlements of disputes. 
 

5. The city attorney will review and approve the Agreement as to legal sufficiency. 
 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: February 5, 2013. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 4th day of February, 2013. 
 
_______________________________ 
Daniel Danicic, City Recorder 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 7th day of February, 2013. 
 

 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

Page 27



	
	

 
 
 
 

 
COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 

 
BETWEEN  

THE CITY OF NEWBERG  
 

AND  

THE NEWBERG  
PUBLIC WORKS UNION  

AFSCME Local 1569 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Effective upon Execution, which is  

February ____, 2013 ‐ December 31, 2014 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 28



	

Contents 
ARTICLE	1:	UNION	RECOGNITION	............................................................................................................................................	1	

ARTICLE	2:	MANAGEMENT	RIGHTS	.........................................................................................................................................	2	

ARTICLE	3:	UNION	SECURITY	AND	RIGHTS	OF	BARGAINING	UNIT	EMPLOYEES	..............................................	3	

ARTICLE	4:	NON‐DISCRIMINATION	.........................................................................................................................................	7	

ARTICLE	5:	HOURS	OF	WORK	.....................................................................................................................................................	8	

ARTICLE	6:	WAGES	.......................................................................................................................................................................	11	

ARTICLE	7:	RETIREMENT	..........................................................................................................................................................	13	

ARTICLE	8:	HEALTH	&	WELFARE	..........................................................................................................................................	15	

ARTICLE	9:	HOLIDAYS	.................................................................................................................................................................	17	

ARTICLE	10:	VACATION	..............................................................................................................................................................	19	

ARTICLE	11:	SICKNESS	AND	INJURY	LEAVE	.....................................................................................................................	21	

ARTICLE	12:	OTHER	LEAVES	...................................................................................................................................................	19	

ARTICLE	13:	PROBATION	..........................................................................................................................................................	26	

ARTICLE	14:	LAYOFF/SENIORITY	..........................................................................................................................................	27	

ARTICLE	15:	PROMOTION	AND	TRANSFER	......................................................................................................................	30	

ARTICLE	16:	PERSONNEL	RECORDS	.....................................................................................................................................	32	

ARTICLE	17:	EMPLOYEE	EVALUATIONS	.............................................................................................................................	33	

ARTICLE	18:	DISCIPLINE	AND	DISCHARGE	.......................................................................................................................	34	

ARTICLE	19:	DISPUTE	SETTLEMENT	...................................................................................................................................	37	

ARTICLE	20:	NO	STRIKE	OR	LOCKOUT	................................................................................................................................	41	

ARTICLE	21:	OUTSIDE	EMPLOYMENT	.................................................................................................................................	42	

ARTICLE	22:	WORKING	CONDITIONS	AND	SAFETY	......................................................................................................	43	

ARTICLE	23:	JOINT	LABOR	MANAGEMENT	COMMITTEE	...........................................................................................	45	

ARTICLE	24:	SAVINGS	CLAUSE	................................................................................................................................................	46	

ARTICLE	25:	COMPLETE	AGREEMENT/PAST	PRACTICES/SEVERABILITY	.......................................................	39	

ARTICLE	26:	DURATION	.............................................................................................................................................................	40	

APPENDIX	A	WAGE	SCALE.........................................................................................................................................................	49	

APPENDIX	B	LIMITED	SUPERVISORY	DUTIES	OF	LEAD	WORKERS/CREW	CHIEFS	.......................................	51	

APPENDIX	C	CONTRACTING	OUT	OF	BARGAINING	UNIT	WORK	............................................................................	52	

APPENDIX	D	WASTEWATER	SYSTEM	SUPERVISOR	AGREEMENT	.........................................................................	53	

 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 29



	

1	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 1: UNION RECOGNITION 
 

1.1  Recognition of Union 
The City recognizes the Union as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for the purpose of establishing 
wages, hours, and other conditions of employment for all Public Works employees employed by the City of 
Newberg, excluding employees of the Engineering Department, as well as supervisory and confidential 
employees, as certified by the Oregon Employment Relations Board, case number CC‐09‐12. 
 
1.2   Disputes Concerning Newly Created and Existing Classifications or Clarifications  

1.2.1  Written Notice 
Except for the special provision for reviewing newly created, modified or existing classifications or 
positions, any challenges regarding the inclusion, exclusion, or clarification of classifications or 
positions shall be referred to the Oregon Employment Relations Board for determination. To minimize 
the possibility of such disputes, when a new Public Works non‐bargaining unit classification is created, 
or when a new position is exempted from a classification otherwise represented by the Union, written 
notice will be sent to the Union to include the reason for exemption. Both parties will make a good 
faith effort to resolve the dispute before filing the case with ERB. 

 
1.2.2  Notification of New Class and Wage Scale 
New classes may be developed within the bargaining unit by the City and a wage scale assigned 
thereto. The City will forward notice of the new class and wage scale to the Union by certified mail. The 
wage scale so assigned may be negotiated upon request by the Union within fourteen (14) days after 
receipt of notice from the City. If the Union fails to request bargaining with the City within fourteen 
(14) days of receipt of notice of the new class, the interim wage scale will become final.   

 
1.3   Certification of Union Officers 
The Union shall, on an annual or as changes dictate, basis, provide the City with a written list of the current 
Union officers and stewards responsible for contract administration. 
 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 30



	

2	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

 

ARTICLE 2: MANAGEMENT RIGHTS 
 

2.1  Recognition of Management Rights  
It is recognized that an area of responsibility must be reserved to the employer if the City is to effectively serve 
the public. Except to the extent expressly abridged by a specific provision of this Agreement, it is recognized 
that the responsibilities of management are exclusively functions to be exercised by the City. By way of 
illustration and not of limitation, the following are listed as such management functions: 
 

2.1.1  Determination of Services 
The determination of the services to be rendered to the citizens served by the City. 
 
2.1.2  Determination of City’s Operations 
The determination of the employer's financial, budgetary, accounting and organization policies and 
procedures. 
 
2.1.3  City’s Rules and Provisions 
The continuous overseeing of personnel policies, procedures, and programs promulgated under any 
resolution, ordinance or administrative order of the City, including the establishment of personnel 
rules and regulations not inconsistent with any other term of this Agreement. 
 
2.1.4  Management and Human Resources 
The management and direction of the work force including, but not limited to, the right to determine 
the methods, processes and manner of performing work; the determination of the duties and 
qualifications of job classifications; the right to hire, promote, train, demote, assign duties, transfer and 
retain employees; the right to discipline or discharge for just cause; the right to lay off for lack of work 
or funds; the right to abolish positions or reorganize the departments or divisions; the right to 
determine schedules of work; the right to purchase, dispose and assign equipment or supplies; and the 
decision to contract or sub‐contract any work (within the limits set by MOA in Appendix C of this 
agreement), or other rights as provided by ORS 243.650(7)(g). 
 
2.1.5  Discretionary Practices 
Both parties acknowledge that certain discretionary practices exist within the employer/employee 
relationship, which do not have a material effect on the conditions of employment, such as the 
providing of picnic lunches, holiday hams, etc. The parties agree that such practices shall continue to 
exist at the sole discretion of the City. 

   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 31



3	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 3: UNION SECURITY AND RIGHTS OF BARGAINING UNIT EMPLOYEES  
 

3.1 Rights of Employees to Participate in Union Activities 
Employees shall have the right to self‐organize, to form, join or assist labor organizations or to refrain 
therefrom, to bargain collectively through representatives of their own choosing, and there shall be no 
discrimination exercised against any employee covered by this Agreement because of his/her membership or 
Union activities. 
 
3.2  Union Security and Check‐off Service Fees, Authorization and certification of dues and Fair Share 

3.2.1   Amount deducted each payroll period 
The City agrees to deduct each payroll period from the pay of employees covered by this Agreement as 
applicable: 
 
3.2.2   Union dues 
Monthly Union membership dues of those Union members who individually request and authorize 
such deductions in writing on the form provided by the Union. Deduction of membership dues must be 
authorized in writing on the form provided by the Union. 
 
3.2.3   Fair Share Service Fee 
Monthly Fair Share Service Fee, payable in lieu of dues by any employee who has not joined the Union 
within thirty (30) days of initial regular appointment to a bargaining unit position. 
 

 
3.2.4  Remission of Dues and Fair Share Service Fees 
The Fair Share Service Fee shall be applied solely to defraying the cost of negotiations and contract 
administration. The process for determining the amount of the Fair Share Service Fee deduction, 
accountancy requirements for funds collected, limitations on the use of such funds, and any 
requirements for refund, shall all be in accordance with the requirements of state and federal laws. 
 
3.2.5  Deduction of Dues and Fair Share Service Fees   
The amount to be deducted for dues and Fair Share Service Fees shall be certified in writing to the City 
by the Union President or their designee. The aggregate of all deductions shall be remitted, together 
with an itemized statement, to the Treasurer of the Union at an address certified to the City in writing 
by the Union President or their designee, within five (5) working days after it is withheld or by such 
time as the parties mutually agree in writing. 
 
3.2.6   Religious objections to payment of dues and Fair Share Service Fees 
The Union expressly agrees that it will safeguard the rights of non‐association of employees, based 
upon bona fide religious tenets or teachings of a church or religious body of which such employee is a 
member. Any such employee shall pay an amount equal to regular union dues through the Union to a 
non‐religious charitable organization exempt from taxation under 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code, or other charitable organization mutually agreed upon by the employee making such payment 
and the Union. The employee will make payment through the Union on a monthly basis. The Union will 
forward the payment to the agreed upon charity, and provide the employee with a copy of the 
forwarding letter. 
 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 32



	

4	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

3.2.7   Appointment to excluded positions 
Deductions for Fair Share Service Fees and Union dues shall cease beginning with the pay period 
following an employee’s regular appointment to a position which is excluded from the bargaining unit. 
 
3.2.8   Notice of new and terminated employees 
The City agrees to furnish the Union, in electronic form if possible, the names of any new employees or 
terminated employees.  
 
3.2.9   AFSCME PEOPLE Deductions 
To the extent allowable by law, employees may authorize payroll deductions for the voluntary AFSCME 
PEOPLE (Public Employees Organized to Promote Legislative Equality) by submitting the form provided 
by the Union to Central Payroll. The City agrees to provide the Union by the tenth (10th) of each month 
a listing of employees that are making PEOPLE contributions and amount deducted per employee. This 
report can be included in the same report as dues, provided a separate line item clearly shows this 
deduction. 
 
3.2.10  Defense and Indemnification of the City 
The Union agrees that it will indemnify, defend and hold the City harmless from all suits, actions, 
proceedings or claims against the City or persons acting on behalf of the City, whether for damages, 
compensation, reinstatement, or any combination thereof, arising out of application of this Article. In 
the event any decision is rendered by the highest court having jurisdiction that any portion of this 
Article is invalid and/or that reimbursements must be made to any employees affected, the Union shall 
be solely responsible for such reimbursements. 

 
3.3   Union Representation and Contract Negotiations 

3.3.1  Union Negotiating Team 
The Union's Negotiating Team shall consist of not more than four (4) members, three (3) of whom may 
be employees. City employees participating in such negotiations will be allowed to do so without loss 
of pay. The Union and City may mutually agree to a different number of negotiating team members, 
appointing an equal number of representatives from labor and management. 

 
3.3.2  Ground Rules 
Prior to negotiations, representatives of the City's and the Union's Negotiating Teams will jointly 
discuss general negotiating ground rules, such as the number of observers, resource people, meeting 
times, etc. 

 
3.3.3  Copies of Agreement 
The City shall print enough copies of this Agreement for all employees in the bargaining unit. The City 
shall provide an electronic copy of the Agreement to the Union and post it to the City intranet and 
internet websites. 

 
3.4  Grievances and Contract Administration 

The Union is the exclusive representative of bargaining unit employees with respect to conditions of 
employment governed by this Agreement under the State of Oregon Public Employees Collective 
Bargaining Act.  

 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 33



5	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

3.5  Site Access 
Union representatives will have access to work sites, provided notification is provided to supervisors before 
arrival on site and there is no interruption of the work force.  
 
3.6  Communication with Bargaining Unit Members  

3.6.1  Bulletin boards 
The City agrees to furnish and maintain suitable bulletin boards in convenient places in each work area 
to be used by the Union. The Union shall limit its postings of notices and bulletins to such bulletin 
boards. All postings of notices and bulletins by the Union shall be factual in nature and should be 
signed and dated by the individual doing the posting. 
 
3.6.2  Use of city computers for e‐Mail and Internet connections related to Union business 

3.6.2.a City’s Communication Mediums 
City communication systems may be used for Union business involving electronic 
communications or Internet connections in the following circumstances, but only when such 
use is also in conformance with the other requirements of this Agreement, specifically 
Agreement sections which require that stewards make every effort to avoid disruptions and 
interruptions of work. 

 
3.6.2.b  Meetings 
When such use is de minimis and incidental, such as arranging a meeting with a fellow shop 
steward or the Staff Representative, or for accessing an electronic copy of the union contract.  

 
3.6.2.c  Investigations 
For the purpose of conducting an investigation of a grievance, such as individual inquiries to co‐
workers.  
 
3.6.2.d Other Interactions  
For the purpose of interacting with the City’s representatives concerning Union‐City business, 
such as setting dates for City‐Union meetings, making inquiries regarding grievances, etc. 
 
3.6.2.e Union’s Internet Site 
On the employee’s own time, for the purposes of utilizing the Internet to reach a Union 
Internet site. Any use of such sites will comply with City Personnel Rules and shall exclude 
blogging, use of chat rooms, instant messaging or other live person to person electronic 
communication, and political activities as prohibited by law. 

 
3.6.2.f Union Officials’ Use 
For authorized Union officials only, and on such employee’s own time, for the purpose of 
posting messages on the internet site provided for in (e) above. 

 
3.6.2.g  Communications between The Local 1569 and the City 
The Local 1569 President or designee may use the City’s electronic communication systems for 
the purpose of communicating with Local 1569 members. All such communications shall 
comply with City Personnel Rules. Communications that are sent to employees within a single 
Department shall be approved by the Department Director or designee prior to distribution. 
Communications that are distributed to employees in more than one Department shall be 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 34



6	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

approved by the Human Resources Manager prior to distribution. Examples of such 
communications may include, but are not limited to: meeting announcements; Union elections 
and ratification votes; Union appointments; bargaining updates prior to impasse; seniority lists; 
and miscellaneous surveys.  

 
3.6.2.h  Costs 
The uses cited above may continue only to the extent that they are at no additional cost to the 
City, and are contingent on the continued use of the cited computers, internet connection, 
intranet connection, etc. for other City purposes. The content of any and all communications 
using the City computer system is not privileged and may be subject to City review and public 
records requests. 

 
3.7   Maintenance of Membership 

Employees who are current members of the Union at the signing of this agreement or who sign a 
Union membership card subsequent to the signing of this agreement shall maintain their 
Union membership for the duration of the collective bargaining agreement. Maintenance of 
membership shall be a condition of employment. 

 
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 35



7	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 4: NON‐DISCRIMINATION 
 

4.1  Non‐discrimination and Compliance with Applicable Laws 
The City and the Union agree that each will fully comply with all applicable laws and regulations regarding 
discrimination against any employee or applicant for employment because of such person’s race, religion, 
color, natural origin, gender identity, mental or physical disability, sex, age, union affiliation or other status 
protected by state or federal law. Any references to gender in the Agreement include both genders. The 
parties agree that nothing in this agreement will interfere with or restrict the City in its obligation to 
accommodate individuals with disabilities under federal and state law. Any disputes regarding this article may 
be resolved through the grievance procedure, but will not be subject to the arbitration process. 
 
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 36



8	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 5: HOURS OF WORK 
 
5.1    Regular Hours 
The regular hours of each workday shall typically be consecutive with interruptions for lunch periods. 

5.2     Work Week  
Work week shall consist of a seven (7) day work schedule with five (5) consecutive eight (8) hour days with 
two (2) consecutive days off or four (4) consecutive ten (10) hour days with three (3) consecutive days off or 
any other type of alternative work schedule agreed to in writing by the Union, the employee(s) and the City. 
However, the City may agree to a change in the work schedule where necessary to accommodate an 
employee as required by federal or state law.  

5.3     Schedule Changes 
5.3.1  Notice of Changes 
Notice of change in an employee’s work schedule shall be given to the affected employees not less 
than five (5) calendar days prior to the effective date of the change. The City may also grant a 
reasonable request for a temporary change to the work schedule of an employee on a case‐by‐case 
basis. 
 
5.3.2  Flexible Work Schedules 
By mutual agreement, at any time, the work schedule can be flexed, meaning different start and stop 
time or different days during the week without the payment of overtime unless the request exceeds 
forty (40) hours in a work week. 

5.4  Rest Periods 
5.4.1  Definition 
Rest periods will be provided for in accordance with federal and state law. All employees shall have a 
fifteen  (15) minute rest period during each one‐half  (1/2) shift which shall be scheduled as near  the 
middle of each one‐half (1/2) shift as  is feasible. Rest periods may not be accumulated, nor shall rest 
periods have any monetary value. 
 
5.4.2  Extreme Weather Conditions 
Employees working in extreme weather conditions such as temperature over 90 degrees and under 35 
degrees may be given extra breaks at the discretion of a division manager.  
 

5.5 Meal Periods 
Meal periods will be provided for in accordance with federal and state law. All employees will be granted a 
thirty (30) minute or a sixty (60) minute unpaid meal period during each work shift, which shall be scheduled 
as near the middle of each shift as is feasible. The current length of meal periods may be changed by mutual 
agreement between the employee and supervisor. Employees shall not be permitted to work through a meal 
period unless approval from a supervisor is obtained before the scheduled break period. 

5.6     Call Back Time 
5.6.1  Definition 
Any employee called to work outside of his/her regularly scheduled shift shall be paid for a minimum 
of two (2) hours at the rate of time of one (1) and one‐half (1 ½) times the employee’s regular 
compensation (overtime rate). Call backs within the same two hour period will be considered one call 
back for the purposes of this Section. If the call back time work assignment and the employee's regular 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 37



9	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

shift overlap, the employee shall be paid the overtime rate until the employee completes two (2) hours 
work. The employee shall then be paid for the balance of the regular work shift at the appropriate rate. 
This section does not apply to scheduled overtime at the beginning of the work shift or workday or at 
the end of the work shift or workday provided forty‐eight (48) hour notice has been given and the 
overtime is consecutive with the shift hours or work. 
 
5.6.2  Not Returning to Work Site 
An employee who receives a call and is able to resolve the issue by phone or by computer without 
having to come to work shall be paid one (1) hour of overtime rate if the employee can resolve the 
problem within thirty (30) minutes. If the issue requires more than thirty (30) minutes or the employee 
must leave his/her home, the employee shall receive a minimum of two (2) hours of overtime. 
 
5.6.3  Travel Time 
For call backs, the first thirty (30) minutes of travel time is considered part of paid time. Employees 
who live further than thirty (30) minutes from the work site, have made a choice to do so and the City 
shall not compensate them for the addition travel time (i.e. if an employee lives forty‐five (45) minutes 
from the City and a call back requires one hour to complete, the employee shall only receive the two 
(2) hour minimum at time and a half). 
 

5.7      Overtime 
5.7.1  Definition 
When employees are required to work overtime, the employee may, at his/her discretion choose 
either compensatory time off or pay at the rate of one (1) and one‐half (1 ½) times the employee’s 
regular rate of compensation. Overtime is defined as any hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in 
one workweek. The division supervisor must approve any overtime hours in advance. Unauthorized 
overtime shall be paid in accordance with FLSA. However, employees working unauthorized overtime 
may be subject to discipline. 
 
5.7.2  Accumulation and Use of Compensatory Accrual 
Compensatory time accumulation shall not generally exceed forty (40) hours.  Employees may request 
to take compensatory time off and shall be permitted by the City to use such time within a reasonable 
period after making the request if the use of the compensatory time does not unduly disrupt the 
operations of the City. 
 

5.8     Stand‐by Pay.  
5.8.1  Regular Time and Pay 
When the City officially places an employee on stand‐by and requires an employee to carry an 
emergency communication device and to respond to emergency calls generally within thirty (30) 
minutes, the City shall pay the employee twenty‐five dollars ($25) per calendar day.   
 
5.8.2  Enumerated Holiday Time and Pay 
On the enumerated holidays, employees on stand‐by shall receive fifty dollars ($50) per day:  Christmas 
Eve, Christmas Day, Thanksgiving Day, Day after Thanksgiving, New Year’s Day and Fourth of July.  
 

5.9     Reporting Time. 
5.9.1  Minimum Requirement 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 38



10	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

An employee who is scheduled to report for work and who presents him or herself for work as 
scheduled shall be assigned to at least three (3) hours of work. 
 
5.9.2  Applicable Pay Rate 
If work within the bargaining unit is not available, the employee shall be excused from duty and paid 
for three (3) hours work at the appropriate rate, straight time or overtime, whichever is applicable. 
 
5.9.3  Excused from Duty 
If an employee reports for and starts to work as scheduled, and is excused from duty before 
completing three (3) hours work, the employee shall be paid for three (3) hours work at the 
appropriate rate, straight time or overtime, whichever is applicable. 

	  

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 39



11	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 6: WAGES 
 
6.1  Rate of Pay 
Each employee shall be compensated in accordance with the wage schedule attached to this agreement in 
Appendix A.  
  6.1.1   Effective Date for COLA first contract year 
  Effective and retroactive to January 1, 2013, the COLA will be 2.5%. 
 
  6.1.2   Effective Date for Bonus 
  Effective the final paycheck of November 2013 each employee will be provided with a onetime bonus 

in the amount of $275.00. 
 
  6.1.3   Effective Date for COLA second contract year 

Effective January 1, 2014, the COLA will be 2.0%. 
6.2   
Salary Step Increases.  
Employees shall be eligible for salary step increase consideration as follows: 

6.2.1   Completion of Probationary Period 
Completion of the initial probation period, typically following twelve (12) months of service. 1  
 

  6.2.2   Promotions 
  Completion of twelve (12) months of service following a promotion. 
 

6.2.3   Top of Ranges 
Annual periods after 6.2.1 or 6.2.2 above until the employee reaches the top of the range. 
 

  6.2.4   Unsatisfactory Evaluations 
The City may withhold a step increase if the employee receives an unsatisfactory evaluation and has 
discipline from the evaluation period that includes a written warning. The supervisor shall give the 
employee written notice of the withholding prior to the eligibility date, including a statement as to why 
the City is withholding the increase. If the parties have not previously implemented a work plan for the 
employee during the preceding year, the City and the employee shall discuss a work plan designed to 
improve the employee’s performance. If the employee satisfactorily completes the work plan within six 
(6) months, the City shall provide a delayed step increase in lieu of the withheld step increase. If the 
employee does not satisfactorily complete the work plan, the City will not grant the increase. Final 
decisions shall be at the sole discretion of the City; however, the employee may request review of a 
final decision by the Human Resources Manager and/or the City Manager.  
 

6.3  Salary on Promotion  
Upon promotion, an employee shall be paid at least the minimum of the salary for the new job and shall 
receive roughly a 5% increase (occasionally step distance may vary slightly).2 

																																																								
1	In cases where probation is extended, no increase shall be received until after probation is successfully completed, in those cases 
that may be longer than 12 months. 
	
2	It is intended that employees should receive 5% when promoted to a new higher level position, or to the step in the new range 
that is nearest to 5%.	

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 40



12	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

6.4  Salary on Demotion 
6.4.1  Disciplinary Action 
Whenever an employee is demoted as a result of disciplinary action, the employee’s salary shall be 
maintained at the same step number/letter as previously held, but in the lower pay scale resulting in 
roughly a 5% pay reduction.   
 

  6.4.2  Compensatory Process 
Whenever the City demotes an employee to a new job for a reason other than discipline, the 
employee’s salary shall move to the new pay range at the step most closely aligned to the employee’s 
current rate of pay. If the employee’s current rate of pay is below the maximum rate of pay for the 
new position, the employee shall continue to receive market adjustments and to be eligible for step 
increases. If the employee’s current rate of pay is above the maximum rate of pay for the new position, 
the employee shall be frozen (red circled) at the existing rate of pay until such time as future market 
adjustments have brought the pay range for the job above that of the employee’s frozen pay rate.  
 

6.5  Salary on Return from Layoff 
When the City recalls an employee previously laid off, he/she shall be placed at the step most closely aligned 
to the employee’s rate of pay at the time of the layoff. Future step increase eligibility shall be the prior date, 
adjusted for the time away, just as if the employee had taken a leave of absence. 

6.6  Pay Day 
Employees are paid monthly. Paydays are generally the last day of each month. If the payday falls on either a 
Saturday or a Sunday, paychecks will be distributed on the Friday prior to the established payday. If a City of 
Newberg Holiday falls on payday, you will receive your check on the last workday prior to the holiday. 
Employees may request direct deposit. 
 
6.7  Out of Class Pay 
Employees assigned by a supervisor in writing to perform the duties of a higher paid position for more than a 
total of five (5) consecutive working days shall be paid for all such work, retroactively to the first day of the 
assignment, five percent (5%) of the employee's base salary. 

6.8  Beginning Salary 
Normally an employee will be appointed or reinstated at the first step of the range established for his/her 
classification. The City may make an appointment or reinstatement above the first step at the sole discretion 
of the City. 

 
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 41



13	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 7: RETIREMENT 
 
7.1   Retirement Plan 
The City provides a City Retirement Plan for all regular full‐time employees. The employees contribute to their 
retirement by paying the six percent (6%) employee contribution, directly out of their paychecks into the 
retirement plan (as a pretax contribution per IRS Code 414(h)). 
7.2   Deferred Compensation Plan 
The City agrees to provide opportunities for employees to participate in Internal Revenue Code Section 457 
Deferred Compensation Plans. Contributions may be made by employees in any amount up to the annual limit 
set forth by the IRS. 

7.3   The Longevity Deferred Compensation Program 
Deferred compensation will be paid at the following rates: 

7.3.1 Ten (10) Years 
After ten (10) years of employment, forty dollars ($40) a month. 
 
7.3.2 Fifteen (15) Years 
After fifteen (15) years of employment, sixty dollars ($60) a month. 
 
7.3.3 Twenty (20) Years 
After twenty (20) years of employment, one‐hundred dollars ($100) a month. 
 

7.4  Retirement Medical Insurance 
Retiring employees may qualify to purchase, through the City, Retirement Medical Insurance, pursuant to the 
provision of Oregon Revised Statute 243.303. 

7.5  Changes to Retirement Plan 
7.5.1  Mutual Agreement 
Both parties must mutually agree to any changes in the City Retirement Plan. 
 
7.5.2  Annual Statements and Plan Books 
The City will provide employees annual statements on Retirement Plans. Plan books are available 
through Human Resources. 
 

7.6  Retirement and Recall Pursuant to Accrued Sick Leave 
7.6.1 Accrued Sick Leave with Retirement Calculation 
Fifty  percent  (50%)  of  an  employee’s  accrued  sick  leave  goes  into  the  employee’s  retirement 
calculation  when  he/she  separates  from  services  voluntarily  or  is  laid  off.  If  the  City  recalls  an 
employee from layoff status within the specified time period the City will reinstate the remaining fifty 
percent  (50%) of  the employee’s previously accrued sick  leave, per Article 14.4.5 which shall be  the 
amount  recorded  at  the  time  of  the  layoff.  However,  for  the  purposes  of  the  accrued  sick  leave 
retirement calculation, the employee’s accrual must start over from the time of recall.  
 
7.6.2 Example 
For example, if the City lays off an employee with two‐hundred (200) hours of accrued sick leave, the 
employee will receive 100 hours (50%) in his/her retirement calculation. If the City then recalls the 
employee within the specified time, the employee will return and regain the remaining one‐hundred 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 42



14	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

(100) hours of accrued sick leave. However, for future retirement calculation purposes, the employee 
will start with zero (0) accrued hours when he or she is recalled. Therefore, if that same employee 
voluntarily leaves City employment twenty‐four (24) months later having used no sick leave, he/ she 
will have added one hundred ninety‐two (192) hours of the sick leave bank for a total of two hundred 
ninety‐two hours (292) hours. However, only 50% of the newly accrued one hundred ninety‐two hours 
(192) is eligible for being rolled into retirement. 

   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 43



15	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 8: HEALTH & WELFARE 
 
8.1  Carrier and Coverage Changes 
The City retains the exclusive right to select the plans and carriers (or to develop and implement a self‐
insurance plan) for medical, dental, vision, life and other insurance plans provided that the successor plan(s) 
provide substantially comparable coverage to the existing plans.  
 
8.2  Plans Offered 
The City currently provides full family medical through CIS’ Copay Plan A; Vision through VSP and Dental Plan 
III with orthodontic coverage provided through CIS’ ODS plan to eligible full time (40 hour a week) employees. 
Payroll deduction of the employee contribution toward the monthly health care premium shall continue 
following the ratification of this agreement.   
 
8.3  Premium Contribution  

8.3.1  Percentages 
The City will contribute ninety percent (90%) of the cost of the eligible employee's monthly health care 
premium and the employee will contribute ten percent (10%). 

 
8.3.2  Options for Eligible Employees 
Eligible employees may enroll dependents in the medical, dental and vision plans, but must pay ten 
(10%) toward dependent coverage. This cost shall be deducted from the employee’s paycheck.  

 
8.4  Limit to Future Increases 
Effective January 1, 2014, should insurance premium rates increase more than 10% from the previous year, 
the employer and the employees will share the premium increases above 10% equally, to a maximum 
employee contribution of no more than 15% of the total medical, dental and vision premiums. 
 
8.5  Additional Insurance 
The City shall provide Long Term Disability, Long Term Care, Accidental Death and Dismemberment, and Life 
Insurance to eligible full time employees without cost to the employees. 
 
8.6  Insurance Eligibility 
Eligible employees are all regular full time employees who have completed thirty (30) days of employment. 
Insurance plan coverage begins on the first day of the month following completion of the thirty (30) day 
waiting period. If an eligible employee does not enroll during the eligibility period the eligible employee is 
required to wait for an “open enrollment” period to be insured. 
 
8.7  Continued Eligibility Coverage 
The City will pay its contribution for the insurance premium for employees who work or use authorized leave 
for at least the first forty (40) working hours of the month. 
 
8.8  Qualified Family Status Changes (Qualifying Event) 
The addition or deletion of dependents as a result of a qualifying event will be provided in accordance with 
federal or state laws and City Policy. Enrollment changes must be received by the Human Resource Manager 
with applicable documentation within 31 calendar days for newborns or children placed with the employee for 
adoption, or a new spouse. Changes shall be effective the first of the month following the date of the 
qualifying event; except in the case of newborns, adoptions or marriage, coverage is effective on the date of 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 44



16	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

the birth, placement in the home or date of marriage. For newly eligible dependents not enrolled within 31 
calendar days, coverage cannot be obtained until the next open enrollment with coverage effective January 1 
of the following year. 
 
8.9  Flexible Spending Accounts (FSA)  
The City shall make available the FSA Section 125 plan for health care expense reimbursement and dependent 
care expense reimbursement. The employee signs up for this plan at the time of open enrollment each year. 
The amount specified by the employee is deducted from their monthly paycheck.  
 
8.10  Employee Assistance Program 
The City agrees to make available an employee assistance program providing confidential counseling services 
to employees and their eligible dependents. For information regarding this plan please contact the Human 
Resources Manager. 
 
 
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 45



17	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 9: HOLIDAYS 
 
9.1   Regular Holidays 
The following days (each a 24‐hour period from midnight to midnight) shall be recognized and observed as 
holidays on the days specified: 
 

9.1.1  Recognized Holidays 

The City of Newberg observes the following holidays each year, and offices are officially closed on 
these days:  

New Year’s Day        Labor Day  
Martin Luther King Jr.’s Day     Veteran’s Day  
Presidents’ Day         Thanksgiving Day  
Memorial Day          Day after Thanksgiving  
Fourth of July          Christmas Eve  
Christmas Day  

 
9.1.2   Floating Holiday 
In addition, employees will receive one floating holiday. The floating holiday shall be granted by 
calendar year and must be used by December 31. Employees hired after March 1 shall not be eligible 
for the floating holiday until January 1 of the following year. An employee shall not be eligible for a 
floating holiday after submitting a resignation.  

 
9.1.3   Hours Paid for Holidays 
Holidays are paid based on the number of hours in a typical workday for regular full‐time employees. If 
employees work a 5/8 schedule, then eight (8) hours of holiday pay will be paid. If an employee works 
a 4/10 schedule requested by that employee, they shall be paid eight (8) hours holiday and will have 
the option of using a total of two (2) hours of compensatory time and/or vacation time, or flexing their 
hours within the same week.  

 
9.1.4  Observation of Holiday 
 If any holiday falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday will be observed, unless that Friday is also a 
holiday, in which case the following Monday will be observed. If any of the above holidays falls on a 
Sunday, the following Monday will be observed, unless that Monday is also a holiday, in which case the 
preceding Friday will be observed.  

 
9.1.5  Schedule for Holidays 
For Departments with other schedules and other regular part‐time employees who might not work on 
the actual holiday the following applies. Holidays may occur on the days regular full‐time or regular 
part‐time staff members are not scheduled to work. If a holiday falls on a day off for a staff member, 
they may take the holiday within the pay period (with approval from their supervisor or Department 
Head) or receive straight compensatory time to be used later. The dates observed for the above 
holidays will be those authorized by the Oregon Legislature. Employees will receive a schedule each 
year showing the date each of these holidays will be observed.  

 
9.2   Eligibility  
Employees regularly scheduled to work forty (40) hours or more per week will be paid for the above holidays. 
Regular part‐time employees will receive a pro‐rated amount of paid time based on their regularly scheduled 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 46



18	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

time. For instance, a regular part‐time employee working twenty (20) hours per week would receive four (4) 
hours of holiday pay because he/she is working 50% of full‐time. Upon submitting a resignation notice the City 
requires an employee to work on the day before or after the holiday in order to receive holiday pay. 
Temporary workers and contract employees are not eligible for paid holidays. 
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 47



19	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

 

ARTICLE 10: VACATION 
 
10.1   Vacation Eligibility 
All full‐time and regular part‐time employees are eligible for vacation based on the schedule below. All 
accruals are pro‐rated the first month of employment.  
 
10.2   Exceptions to Eligibility 
New employees shall not be eligible for vacation leave during their first six (6) months of employment, unless 
specific arrangements have been made at the time of hire. Vacation leave shall accrue from the beginning of 
employment, but no vacation time may be taken or paid during the first six months. One (1) week of vacation 
may be taken after satisfactory completion of six (6) months of employment.  
 
10.3   Vacation Accrual Schedule 
You will earn vacation benefits for each full calendar month worked according to the following schedule:  
 

Length of Service as of 
Anniversary Date 

Vacation Award  Maximum Vacation 
Accrual Allowed 

Up to 5 years  12 days (8 hrs. each)per Month (96 hrs./year)  192 

5 years, less than 10 years  15 days (8 hrs. each)per Month (120 hrs./year)  240 

10 years, less than 15 years  18 days (8 hrs.  each)per Month (144 hrs./year)  288 

15 years, less than 20 years  20 days (8 hrs. each)per Month (160 hrs./year)  320 

20 years or more  22 days (8 hrs. each)per Month (176 hrs./year)  352 

 
 
10.4   Pro‐rata Accruals 
Accrual for regular part‐time employees is on a pro‐rated basis calculated on the established budgeted FTE. 
Continuous service will be calculated from the first of the month nearest your date of hire. 
 
10.5   Vacation Purpose 
Vacation is provided so that employees can enjoy periods of time away from work. Vacation is intended for 
rest and recreation. Vacation accruals are not to be cashed out. Vacation accrual will be paid out at separation 
in accordance with applicable laws (FLSA, etc.).   
 
10.6   Maximum Accrual 
Accruals cannot exceed two times an employee’s annual accrual rate. Vacation benefits will stop accruing 
when the maximum allowed has been reached. The benefit will begin accruing again when you reduce the 
total to less than the allowed maximum. 
 
 
 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 48



20	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

10.7  Vacation Use and Approval Process 
 Employees who want to use vacation time should request time off as early as possible so that arrangements 
for coverage can be made. Requests for vacation time are to be made in writing and submitted to the 
immediate supervisor. Generally, employees will not be allowed more than two weeks off at a time. The City 
will try to grant each request, but cannot guarantee requests will be approved. In the event of competing 
requests for times submitted concurrently, consideration will be given to the employee with the longest 
tenure, or seniority as defined in Article 14. Approval of special requests may be done at the discretion of the 
Department Head in accordance with departmental rules.  
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 49



21	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

 

ARTICLE 11: SICKNESS AND INJURY LEAVE 
 
11.1  Sick Leave Accrual for Full and Part‐Time  Regular Employees 

11.1.1  Full‐time Regular Employees 
Full‐time regular employees shall accrue paid sick leave at the rate of 8 hours per month. 
 
11.1.2 Maximum Accrual 
Sick leave will accrue to a maximum of one‐thousand (1,000) hours for full‐time employees and at the 
prorated equivalent based on budgeted FTE for part‐time regular employees. 
 
11.1.3  Part‐time Regular Employees 
Part‐time regular employees will accrue paid sick leave hours on the first day of each month in the 
same proportion equivalent based on budgeted FTE. 
 

11.2  Transfer of Sick Leave 
When an employee is transferred or appointed to another department, an employee sick leave balance shall 
be assumed by the new department. 
 
11.3  Use of Sick Leave 

11.3.1  Allowable Reason 
Employees may use their allowance of sick leave when unable to perform their work duties by reason 
of illness or injury, parental and family leave as specified by Oregon or Federal law, necessity for 
medical or dental care, exposure to contagious disease under circumstances by which the health of the 
employees with whom associated, or member of the public necessarily dealt with would be 
endangered by the attendance of the employee, or by serious health condition in their immediate 
families, requiring the presence of the employee, in compliance with Family Medical Leave Act/Oregon 
Family Leave Act (FMLA/OFLA). Employees may also use sick leave to cover time lost for non‐
emergency medical appointments for themselves, providing the proper authorization has been granted 
by management prior to the time being taken off. 
 
11.3.2  Return to Work 
In order to ensure employees are fully able to safely return to work, all absences of five (5) days or 
more will require the employee to submit to the Human Resources Manager a release to return to 
work signed by licensed medical professional, unless otherwise agreed to as part of a FMLA/OFLA 
approved leave or other mutual agreement. 
 
11.3.3  Emergencies 
Emergency situations will be evaluated on a case‐by‐case basis.  
 
11.3.4  Sick Leave Use 
Sick leave is to be used for the purposes outlined in this Article and will not be granted to cover other 
leave requests made by employees. 
 
 
 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 50



22	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

11.3.5  Legal Requirements 
The City agrees to abide by all State and Federal laws and regulations regarding FMLA, OFLA, Parental 
Leave Act(s), ADA, or similar laws providing rights to employees in their use of sick leave, and other 
accrued leave banks. 
 
11.3.6  Ineligible Employees 
Employees are not eligible for sick leave if continuing to work at another job during the time period for 
which sick leave is requested. 
 
11.3.7  Restriction 
Sick Leave hours cannot be used until after the completion of the pay period in which they are accrued 
to the employee accrued leave bank. 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 51



23	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

11.4   Family Sick Leave  
11.4.1  Eligible Employees 
In the case of a serious health condition of a member of the employee’s immediate family, a 
FMLA/OFLA eligible employee, upon proper notice and approval, may use sick leave to cover time lost. 
 
11.4.2  Immediate Family Definition 
Immediate family for the purpose of this section will be defined as spouse, mother, mother‐in‐law, 
father, father‐in‐law, sister, brother, child or ward, stepmother, stepfather, step‐children, 
grandparents, or grandchildren, same sex partner, or others as provided for by FMLA and/or OFLA. 
 
11.4.3  Deduction from Sick Leave Accrual 
Family sick leave will be deducted from the existing sick leave balance of the employee. 
 
11.4.4  Use for Child 
Sick leave is also available to care for a sick child who does not have a serious health condition but 
requires home care (sick child leave).  Employees who use up their original twelve (12) weeks for 
parental leave are entitled to an additional twelve (12) weeks of sick child leave consistent with 
FMLA/OFLA. 
 

11.5   Catastrophic Leave‐sick leave transfers 
11.5.1  Request for Transfer 
An employee may request, through their Department Head, that some of the employee's paid sick 
leave be transferred to another employee who is absent from work for an extended period of time 
because of an injury, unexpected illness, or other reason for which the use of paid sick leave would 
normally be allowed. The Department Head will pass the request, with the Department Head's 
recommendation, to the City Manager for consideration of approval. The employee receiving a 
donation of paid sick leave must be non‐probationary and must first have used all available paid leave 
and vacation time.  
 
11.5.2  Conditions for Transfer 
The maximum donation shall continue to be sixteen (16) hours per incident and no more than forty‐
eight (48) hours per year. Employees transferring paid sick leave must have accrued a minimum of two 
hundred (200) hours of sick leave or for part‐time a prorated amount commensurate with the 
budgeted full‐time equivalent of the position. All donated leave will be used in the order received by 
the Payroll Department.  
 
11.5.3  Return if Unused 
Any paid sick leave not used by the employee receiving the paid sick leave will be returned to the 
donor employee, so long as the returned time does not cause the donor’s sick leave balance to exceed 
the one‐thousand (1,000) hour maximum. 

 
11.6   Sick Leave Incentive 
The parties acknowledge that the sick leave incentive program referenced in the City Policy Manual is waived 
by the bargaining unit until or unless the parties mutually agree otherwise. 

   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 52



24	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

 

ARTICLE 12: OTHER LEAVES 
 
12.1   Union Leave 
Union officers, stewards and other employee representatives of the Union who are designated by the Union 
to represent it in activities such as conventions, seminars, etc., which may take them away from their City 
employment, may be granted up to ten (10) days leave without pay and without loss of status, seniority or 
other benefits. Such leave may be granted upon the written request of the Union President, made to the City's 
Human Resources Manager not less than ten (10) City business days in advance of the commencement of the 
requested leave. The number of Union representatives absent on Union leave from any one division shall not 
exceed two (2) at any one time. 
 
12.2   Jury Duty 
In the event an employee is duly summoned to any court for the purposes of performing jury duty, they shall 
receive their regular compensation for any regularly scheduled working hours spent in the performance of 
such service, provided that any compensation that may have been received for jury duty is turned over to the 
City. If jury duty does not take the entire work day, employees shall be afforded reasonable paid time in order 
to travel to work or the employee may choose to use appropriate leave for the remainder of the shift if pre‐
approved.  

 
12.3   Bereavement Leave  

12.3.1  Definition 
Each regular employee covered by this contract will be entitled to up to three (3) consecutive working 
days of bereavement leave with pay per qualifying occurrence. Additional leave, of up to two (2) 
additional consecutive working days may be granted by the Department Head, or designee for the 
purpose of out of state travel or if an employee plays an integral part in a funeral or memorial 
service. The additional two (2) days will be supplemented from the employee’s other approved leave 
time, vacation or compensatory time. The City reserves the right to require verification for the use of 
this leave. 
 
12.3.2  Use 
Such bereavement leave will apply to a death in the immediate family as defined under family sick 
leave.  
 
12.3.3  Not Accruable 
Bereavement leave will not be accruable from year‐to‐year nor will it have any monetary value if 
unused, and is not available for cash‐out. 
 
12.3.4  Additional Time Off 
Employees wishing to take time for the loss of a family friend, pet, or other loss not specifically 
declared in this article, may request to take time off but will need to utilize accrued vacation or 
compensatory time. Management will consider such requests and in the interest of supporting the 
employee at their time of loss, approve when staffing levels permit.  
 
 
 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 53



25	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

12.4 Educational Leave With or Without Pay 
12.4.1  Definition 
Special consideration may be granted employees wishing leave for purposes of pursuing educational 
training at any accredited school, when the course of study is directly related to the requesting 
employee's work. Such leave will be without compensation.  
 
12.4.2  Certifications and Training 
The City will pay for the maintaining of all current Public Works related certifications obtained while in 
the employ of the City, as well as all training, fees and materials for employer‐required certifications 
within the Public Works department. The City may also at the Department Head’s discretion, pay for 
training, fees and materials for certifications required for advancement to the next certification level 
within the same division (e.g., Operator I to Operator II). 
 
12.4.3  Costs 
The City may pay for other classes and seminars that in its sole determination benefit the City. 
 

12.5   Authorized Leave without Pay 
12.5.1  Unpaid Leave 
It is the expectation of the City that employees will be judicious in their use of paid leave and that the 
need for an authorized leave without pay will be a rare occurrence. In the event of the exhaustion of 
vacation, holiday and compensatory leave time, the employee may be assigned by the Department 
Head to leave without pay due to unavoidable absence from work. 
 
12.5.2  Temporary Absence 
In instances where the work will not be seriously handicapped by the temporary absence of an 
employee, a Department Head may grant a leave of absence without pay not to exceed thirty (30) 
calendar days. Leaves of absence without pay for periods in excess of thirty (30) days will be made at 
the discretion of the City Manager. Requests for such leave must be in writing and must establish 
reasonable justification for approval of the request. Such leave will not be approved for an employee 
who is accepting employment outside the City service. 
 

12.6   Government Leave 
The City will provide leaves for Military Service and other public service areas as required by state and federal 
law. Grievance action taken under this section will not include binding arbitration unless mutually agreed to by 
the parties. 
 
12.7   Family Medical Leaves 
Employees shall be eligible to take Family Medical Leave(s) in accordance with relevant Federal and/or Oregon 
law. Necessary requests and documentation will be filed with the Human Resources Department. 
 
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 54



26	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 13: PROBATION 
 
13.1  Probationary Period 

13.1.1  Original Appointment Probationary Period 
All original appointments shall be tentative and subject to a probationary period of twelve (12) months 
of service. Evaluation of the employee's adjustment to work tasks, conduct and other work rules, 
attendance, and job responsibilities will be conducted during the probationary period. Upon 
agreement by the City and the Union, probation may be extended up to four (4) additional months. 
Time spent on extended leave (leave greater than two (2) consecutive weeks) does not count towards 
the months of service required to complete the probationary period. Probation shall end only upon 
receipt of a satisfactory performance evaluation which shall not be delayed unreasonably. 
 
13.1.2  Regular Employment Status 
Upon satisfactory completion of the probationary period as judged by the City in a written 
performance evaluation, the employee shall be considered as having demonstrated qualifications for 
the position, shall gain regular status, and shall be so informed through the supervisor. Upon attaining 
regular status, the employee shall be informed concerning eligibility for a merit increase. 
 
13.1.3  Termination During Probationary Period 
During the initial probationary period, a probationary employee may be terminated at any time 
without appeal or recourse to the grievance procedure of this Agreement. Probationary employees 
may not use the grievance procedure. 
 
13.1.4  Promotional Probationary Period  
Upon promotion within the bargaining unit, an employee will undergo a promotional probationary 
period of six (6) months. If more time is necessary to evaluate a promoted employee, the City may 
extend the promotional probationary period up to three (3) months. During the promotional 
probationary period, an employee may be returned to the employee's former position for any reason 
without appeal or recourse to the grievance procedure of this Agreement. 
 

   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 55



27	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 14: LAYOFF/SENIORITY 
  
14.1   Seniority 

14.1.1   Seniority Definition 
For purposes of this contract, "seniority" means length of continuous service in a bargaining unit 
position, computed from the date of the employee's original hire. Such date shall be known as the 
employee's "continuous service date." Where two employees have the same continuous service date, 
the employee whose application was first filed shall be deemed the senior employee. Where 
continuous service dates and application dates are the same, seniority shall be determined by lot. 

  
14.1.2 Continuous Service Definition 
As used in this section, "continuous service" includes all authorized paid leaves of absence and unpaid 
leaves of absence for less than thirty (30) consecutive calendar days, but does not include any period 
between an employee's layoff and recall nor unpaid leaves of absence for more than thirty (30) 
consecutive calendar days. In the event of layoff and recall, the employee's continuous service date 
shall be adjusted to reflect a total length of continuous service.  

  
14.2   Order of Layoff 

14.2.1  Reduction in Force 
In the event of a reduction in force in a department or division, the City will first ask for volunteers in 
that job. If there are no volunteers or the number of volunteers is insufficient, layoffs will be made in 
the inverse order of seniority. The City will provide sixty (60) days written notice in person to the 
affected employees and by mail to the union. Affected employees shall be informed of the layoff as 
soon as practicable. The laid off employee may, at their discretion, bump a less senior regular full time 
employee in a lower job description, if the laid off employee is qualified for that position. “Qualified” 
shall be defined as meeting the posted minimum qualifications in the job description at the time of 
bumping, including required certifications. Exceptions to certification may be made in jobs where the 
law does not require certification for the position and the employee has the necessary skills and can 
obtain the certification within ninety (90) days. 

  
14.2.2  Layoff Status 
While on layoff status, regular employees may apply for seasonal work. If an employee is laid off from 
a regular job and later accepts a seasonal position, this would not change any of the provisions in this 
Article. Employees who bump to a seasonal position will be subject to recall under Articles 14.3 and 
14.4. 

  
14.2.3  Pay Status 
Employees who bump to a seasonal position will be paid at the existing hourly rate as paid to other 
seasonal positions.  

  
14.3   Layoff Status 

14.3.1  Definition 
 For a period of twelve (12) months following the date of layoff, an employee shall be classified as on 
"layoff status," and the employee’s name maintained on a recall eligible list. The order of names on the 
recall list shall be in inverse order of layoff, by job description. At the end of the twelve (12) month 
period, or sooner if the employee so requests, the employee's name shall be removed from the list. 

 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 56



28	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

14.3.2  Entitlements 
An employee on layoff status shall not be entitled to any pay, status, benefits, or employment rights 
other than those specifically provided herein. 

 
14.3.3  Notification of Change of Address 
An employee on layoff status shall promptly inform the Human Resources Manager of any change of 
address, and shall be deemed terminated if a letter mailed to the last address recorded with the City is 
returned unclaimed. 

  
14.3.4  Accrual Payout 
An employee being laid off shall be paid for the total accrued vacation, holiday (if any) and 
compensatory time existing at the time of the layoff date. 

 
14.4   Order of Recall 

14.4.1  Definition 
An employee on the recall list shall be offered a seasonal position, if available, if the employee is 
qualified for the position. 

 
14.4.2  Order 
Recall of employees to active employment shall be made in order of their names on the recall list for 
job descriptions from which they were laid off. 

 
14.4.3  Eligibility 
Regular employees who are on a recall list (as defined by Article 14.3) will be eligible for employment 
in a vacant seasonal position. Regular employees who accept seasonal work shall be retained on the 
recall list. Failure to accept seasonal work will not affect the employee’s standing on the recall list.  

 
14.4.4  Termination 
An employee shall be deemed terminated if the employee does not report for work within ten (10) City 
business days of written notice of recall via registered mail for a regular position. Except as provided in 
this section, no person shall be hired to fill any position from which an employee was laid off as long as 
there is an employee within that job description on the layoff eligible list. 
 
14.4.5  Restoration of Accrued Sick Leave 
Upon recall, the employee shall have restored for authorized use all accrued sick leave hours as 
recorded by the City at the time of the layoff (this shall be the adjusted amount after 50% is provided 
for retirement per Article 7.6). This does apply to cases where the laid off employee returns to City 
work by being hired as a replacement as provided in Article 14.5.2 below. Time served in a seasonal 
appointment will not be credited towards the recalled employee’s continuous service date for the 
regular position. 
 
14.4.6  Acceptance of Regular Position 
If an employee accepts a regular position, that employee will not be placed on the recall list and shall 
have no rights to recall, with the exception of 14.5.2. 

 
 
 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 57



29	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

14.5   Replacement Employment 
14.5.1  General Applicant  
An employee on layoff status may apply for a position with the City in a job other than the one from 
which the employee was laid off.  

  
14.5.2  Retaining Eligibility  
Acceptance of employment in a lower level job with a lower pay scale other than the employee's 
former job shall not be cause to remove the employee's name from the layoff eligible list. Rejection of 
replacement employment shall not be grounds for removal. 

 
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 58



30	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 15: PROMOTION AND TRANSFER 
 
15.1  Promotions 
Promotion is the change of position for an employee from a position in one class designation to a position in a 
class assigned to a higher salary range. 

15.1.1  Filling Job Vacancies 
Any job vacancy may be filled by promoting qualified employees within the City service or by hiring an 
external candidate. The City will fill employment vacancies with the most qualified applicant, whether 
it is from an internal or external source. Any current employee that applies for a union represented 
vacant posted position, that meets the minimum qualifications as defined in the posting, will be given 
an interview for that position. 
 
15.1.2  Recruiting and Hiring Process 
External recruiting may be initiated concurrently with the internal posting process, but no hiring 
commitment or decision will be made until the position has been posted internally for a minimum of 
five working days. In order to be eligible to promote to a different job, employees must have 
completed probation and shall not be in the process of any disciplinary action, during the recruitment 
process. New probationary periods will begin at the time of an approved transfer to a new 
classification and/or a promotion. 
 
15.1.3  Appointment to Filling Vacancies 
The appointment to fill a vacancy shall be made on a competitive basis utilizing criteria established by 
the City.  
 
15.1.4  Promotional Hire 
Employees who are promoted or transferred to a different classification shall serve a six (6) month 
probationary period in that different position. The City may extend the six (6) month promotional 
probationary period for up to three (3) additional consecutive months. The employee shall be covered 
by all terms and conditions of this contract except that the City's standards for successful completion 
of the probationary period and its application to the employee may not be grieved.  
 
15.1.5  Right of Return  
Any regular status employee who is promoted shall have a two (2) week period of time from the date 
of appointment during which the employee shall be allowed to return to the employee’s former 
position. This two‐week period of time may be extended by the City if it has not made an offer of 
employment for the career employee’s former position. In the event that an employee fails to pass the 
employee’s six (6) month promotional probationary period due to an inability to meet performance 
standards, the employee will be returned to his/her previous position. 
 

 
15.2  Transfers 
Transfer is a change of an employee from one position to another in the same class or to a position in a 
comparable class within the City service. 

15.2.1 Written Requests 
Requests from employees for transfers from one department to another shall be made in writing and 
shall be directed to the employee's present department head and referred to the appropriate 
department head and the appointing power. 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 59



31	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

 
15.2.2 Minimum Qualifications 
Requests for transfer shall be given consideration when a suitable vacancy occurs; however, no 
employee shall be transferred to a position for which he/she does not possess the minimum 
qualifications. In order to be eligible for transfer to a different job, employees must have completed 
probation and shall not be in the process of any disciplinary action. 
 
15.2.3 Decisions 
Final decisions regarding transfers will be made at the discretion of the City Manager. 

 
15.3   Written Offers/Explanations 
Offers of promotion and transfer and notice of an increase shall be given to the employee in writing. Absent 
such written offer and acceptance and absent such notice of an increase, no promotion, transfer or increase 
shall exist. Any employee, upon written request, shall receive in writing an explanation as to why that 
employee was not appointed. The denial of a promotion/transfer shall not be grievable, so long as the 
decision was based upon lawful grounds.  
 
15.4  AFSCME Representative 
AFSCME will be allowed to send a representative to New Employee Orientation to familiarize the new 
employee about the Union.   
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 60



32	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

 

ARTICLE 16: PERSONNEL RECORDS 
 
16.1   Files 
Employees may inspect the contents of their personnel file, in the presence of an authorized City 
representative. Files will be kept with the Human Resources Manager. Any duplicate or subsequent notes or 
records kept by a supervisor shall not contain altered copies nor documents not included in the official 
personnel file at Human Resources. A supervisor’s file documents shall clearly state “copy.” 
 
16.2.  Signature Requirement 
No information reflecting critically upon employees will be placed in their personnel files without the 
employees being given the opportunity to review and sign the information. Employees will be required to sign 
such material to be placed in their personnel file with the understanding that their signature does not indicate 
agreement. If the employee refuses to sign the document, the supervisor will make a note that the employee 
has refused to sign and will place the information in the file. Signature sections shall not be on a separate page 
from the document. They shall be on a front to back or two‐sided document in order to show that the 
signature was placed on the original document and not on a document later amended post‐signature. Original 
signed documents shall be kept in the official personnel file at Human Resources. 
 
16.3   File Purging 
Documentation of an oral reprimand will be removed from the employee's personnel files after eighteen (18) 
months. Upon written request of the employee, written reprimands may be removed from their personnel 
files after eighteen (18) months at the discretion of the Division Manager and as long as no discipline occurred 
within that time period. Upon written request, written reprimands shall be removed from the employee's 
personnel files after thirty‐six (36) months as long as no discipline has occurred during that time period. This 
shall include copies in any subsequent “supervisory” files kept outside of Human Resources.  
 
 
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 61



33	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 17: EMPLOYEE EVALUATIONS 
 
17.1  Evaluations 
As part of the City’s personnel system each employee shall be evaluated upon completion of the probationary 
period and at least once a year in proximity to his/her anniversary date. 
 
17.2  Furnished Copies 
An employee shall receive a copy of any employee evaluation report.  
 
17.3   Appeal Process 
An employee may request a meeting with his or her department head to appeal an evaluation.  
If the evaluation results in economic loss then the employee shall, upon request, meet with the supervisor and 
the City to review the evaluation. The parties may evaluate the appropriateness of a work plan in 
consideration of the employee’s performance and may consider a delayed step increase in lieu of a withheld 
step increase as a potential solution.  
 
17.4  Supplemental Letter 
An employee may write a supplemental letter and have it put in his or her personnel file along with the 
evaluation.  
 
17.5   Definition 
Performance evaluations are not considered disciplinary action, and are not subject to the grievance 
procedure.  
 
 
 
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 62



34	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 18: DISCIPLINE AND DISCHARGE 
  
18.1   Disciplinary Action 

18.1.1  Definition 
Disciplinary action may be imposed upon a non‐probationary employee only for just cause and 
grievance. Disciplinary action imposed on any non‐probationary employee may be processed as a 
grievance through the regular grievance procedure in this agreement, except that a grievance of an 
employee discharge shall be filed at Step 2 (19.6) and comply with all the requirements of Step 1. Oral 
reprimands shall not be grievable to arbitration, Step 3 (19.7). 

  
18.1.2  Progressive Discipline and Serious Misconduct 
Disciplinary action shall be timely. The City will use progressive discipline unless the misconduct is of a 
serious nature that merits a higher level of discipline. Examples of serious misconduct may include, but 
are not limited to, violence or threats in the workplace, being intoxicated or otherwise impaired while 
working, and sexual harassment.  Except in cases of serious misconduct, discipline shall be corrective 
and not punitive. Discipline may include but is not limited to oral reprimand, written reprimand, 
suspension without pay, demotion, reduction in pay and discharge. 

  
18.1.3  Consequences 
Serious violations, as determined by the City, may be dealt with by any of the above measures on the 
first offense or subsequent offenses. 

  
18.1.4  Reprimand 
If the City has reason to reprimand an employee, it shall be done in a manner that will not embarrass 
the employee before other employees or the public. 

  
18.1.5  Stewards’ Rights 
A steward shall have the right to discuss any disciplinary action imposed or recommended by a 
supervisor with that supervisor at the affected employee's request, with or without the employee's 
presence. 

  
18.1.6  Employees’ Rights 
In addition to the provisions of (18.1.5) above, an employee has the right to have a steward present at 
an interview with a supervisor when the employee has a reasonable belief that the interview is part of 
an investigation which could result in disciplinary action.  The interview may not be unduly delayed to 
await a particular unavailable steward when other stewards may be available. 
 
18.1.7   Due Process 
Due Process procedures which normally will be followed when an employee may be subject to 
discipline greater than a written reprimand are as follows: 
  

18.1.7.a  Notification of Charges or Allegations 
The employee will be notified of the charges or allegations which may subject them to 
discipline. 
  
18.1.7.b  Notification of Disciplinary Sanctions 
The employee will be notified of the disciplinary sanctions being considered. 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 63



35	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

  
18.1.7.c Employees’ Opportunity to Refute Charges or Allegations 
The employee will be given an opportunity to refute the charges or allegations either in writing 
or orally in an informal hearing. 
  
18.1.7.d Accompaniment by Employee 
At their request, the employee will be entitled to be accompanied by a fellow employee or a 
representative of the Union at the informal hearing. 

  
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 64



36	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

18.2   Right to Grieve Discipline 
Any discipline imposed on a non‐probationary employee may be grieved through relevant articles in this 
agreement. If an arbitrator determines that an employee has been issued discipline that does not comply with 
the just cause or other provisions of this Article, the arbitrator will have the authority to fashion an 
appropriate remedy that may include reinstatement with full restoration of rights and conditions of 
employment, compensation for lost wages or other benefits, or a reduction of the level of discipline issued.  
 
18.3   Initial Hire and Promotional Probationary Employees  

18.3.1  Initial Probationary Period 
Newly hired regular employees shall be on probation for twelve (12) months from their date of hire. 
During this initial hire probationary period, probationary employees are not covered by the provisions 
of 18.1 and 18.2, above. Initial hire probationary employees may be discharged by the City at any time 
with no showing of cause. Any discipline or discharge of an initial hire probationary employee is neither 
grievable nor taken to arbitration; such matters are not covered by the provisions of this Agreement. 
Initial hire probationary employees do not have any property rights in the job. 

 
18.3.2  Promotional Probationary Period 
Employees who have been promoted to another position within the bargaining unit may be returned 
to their former position without cause during the promotional probationary period. The return of an 
employee to a former position during the promotional probationary period is not considered discipline 
subject to the provisions of this Article or the grievance process. 

  
18.4   Plans of Correction and Improvement 
Management may counsel employees about areas in which improvement can be attained, when in the 
supervisor’s assessment the employee could benefit from the additional coaching. The City may also provide 
counseling during the employee's performance evaluation and when appropriate the City and employee may 
develop a plan of action for improving performance. The goal of this counseling is to help the employee 
understand the supervisor’s expectations and provide a time frame during which the employee and the 
supervisor will work closely together to reach the required performance or behavioral improvements 
contained within the plan. So called “teachable moments” are not disciplinary in nature. These plans are not 
an extended probation, nor are they intended to be discipline. The purpose behind these policies is to provide 
a tool which allows for the documentation of improvements that must be made by an employee in meeting 
either the performance or behavioral expectations of the supervisor. 

	  

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 65



37	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 19: DISPUTE SETTLEMENT 
  
19.1   Grievance Definition  
As used in this contract, the term "grievance" means any claim by or on behalf of a particular employee or 
party to this contract that such claimant's rights, benefits, privileges, or interests under this contract have 
been violated or that this contract has been misapplied to such claimant in a particular case. 
  
19.2   Exclusive Remedy 
Grievances shall be initiated and processed in the manner provided for herein, which procedure the parties 
mutually acknowledge to be the exclusive and binding process for the resolution of disputes constituting 
grievances. 
  
19.3   Time Limits and Procedures 
Any or all time limits specified in the grievance procedure may be waived by mutual consent of the parties. 
Any such waiver must be reduced to writing by the party requesting it and agreed to in writing by the other 
party (exchanged e‐mails shall be sufficient to meet this requirement). Failure of the aggrieved party to submit 
or prosecute a grievance in accordance with these time limits shall constitute abandonment of the grievance. 
The City shall respond to the grievance within the stated time limits unless an extension has been mutually 
agreed upon. Upon failure of the City to respond to a grievance within the specified time limits, the Union will 
be permitted to advance the grievance to the next step.  
  
19.4   Grievances  

19.4.1  Outline of Written Grievance 
The written grievance shall include: 

 
19.4.2  Name and Position 
The name and position of the employee by or on whose behalf the grievance is brought. 

 
19.4.3  Dates 
The date of the circumstances giving rise to the grievance, and the date of the employee's first 
knowledge thereof, if later. 
 
19.4.4  Statement 
A clear and concise statement of the grievance including the relevant facts necessary to a full and 
objective understanding of the employee's position. 
 
19.4.5  Provisions 
The specific provision or provisions of this contract allegedly violated by the City. 
 
19.4.6   Remedy 
The remedy or relief sought by the employee. 
 
19.4.7  Signature(s) 
The signature of the employee submitting the grievance, and such person's name and position if other 
than the aggrieved employee. 

 
 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 66



38	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

19.5   Grievances at Step 1 
Within fifteen (15) calendar days after the incident that led to a grievance, the aggrieved employee shall file a 
copy of the grievance with the employee’s immediate supervisor. The supervisor or another representative of 
the City will within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the grievance, render a decision after meeting with the 
aggrieved employee and/or union representative. If the grievance is not resolved, the employee will, within 
ten (10) calendar days of the City's decision, proceed to Step 2.  
  
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 67



39	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

19.6   Grievances at Step 2 
The grievance, along with all pertinent written information will be submitted to the City Manager or designee. 
The City Manager or designee will meet with the employee and/or the Union representative and will render a 
decision within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of the grievance. If the City Manager’s decision does not 
resolve the grievance, the Union may advance the grievance to Step 3. 
  
19.7   Grievances at Step 3 

19.7.1  Process 
If the Union chooses to advance the grievance to Step 3, the Union must provide notice to the City 
Manager and request a list of arbitrators from the Employment Relations Board within 15 days of the 
City's response in Step 2 unless mediation has been requested. If the parties do not agree to 
mediation, the Union must request a list of arbitrators within 15 days of the refusal to mediate. 
Grievances shall be submitted to a single arbitrator chosen in the following manner from a list of seven 
(7) names submitted by the State Conciliator of the Employment Relations Board or from any other 
agency on which the parties agree. Within fifteen (15) calendar days following the Union's receipt of 
the list of arbitrators, the City and the Union representatives shall flip a coin to determine who shall 
exercise the first opportunity of striking a name, with the loser of the coin toss striking first. Strikes 
shall be exercised alternately until each party has exercised three (3) strikes and only one (1) name 
remains, who shall be the arbitrator. Within fifteen (15) calendar days from the date the arbitrator is 
selected, the Union, on behalf of both parties, shall inform the arbitrator of selection; and the 
arbitrator shall schedule a hearing. 

  
19.7.2 Mutual Agreement 
The parties may, by mutual agreement in a particular case, provide for any amendment, waiver, 
modification, or addition to the rules and procedures herein set forth in this Article, which agreement 
shall not affect subsequent cases. 

  
19.7.3 Mediation 
Within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of the City's response in Step 2, either party to the labor 
contract may request mediation. Both parties must agree to mediation. If agreed to by both parties, 
the Union will contact the State Conciliator of the Employment Relations Board and a mediation 
session will be held with an assigned mediator. If mediation is not successful, a request shall be made 
within ten (10) calendar days from the conclusion of mediation, for a list of arbitrators. Mediation shall 
be concluded when (1) the parties mutually agree in writing that the grievance is resolved; and (2) the 
Union provides written notice that the grievance is withdrawn; or (3) either party notifies the other 
party and the mediator in writing that it wishes to conclude mediation, but only after at least one 
mediation session has been held. 

  
19.7.4  Arbitration Rules 
Except as expressly provided herein, arbitration of grievances shall be conducted according to the 
applicable rules of the organization that supplied the parties with a list of arbitrators. 

  
19.7.5  Arbitration Process 
When, after the initiation of a grievance at Step 3 but before the arbitration hearing, new factual 
information or evidence directly relevant to the issues first comes to the knowledge of a party and it 
was not previously known to the party, notice of such information immediately shall be served on the 

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 68



40	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

other party's representative.  Such information may be introduced in arbitration, if otherwise 
admissible according to usual evidentiary standards in arbitration. 

  
19.7.6  Arbitration 
The powers of the arbitrator shall be limited to determination of issues of fact and the application and 
interpretation of the provisions of this contract. The arbitrator shall have no power or authority to 
alter, abridge, modify, vacate, or amend any of the terms of this contract; nor to substitute the 
arbitrator’s judgment for that of the City as to any matter within City's discretion under this contract, 
as long as the City did not exercise its discretionary authority unreasonably, arbitrarily, capriciously or 
discriminatorily; nor to consider, decide, or act upon any condition or circumstance not treated in this 
contract. 

  
19.7.7  Arbitrator’s Decision and Costs 
The arbitrator shall render a decision within thirty (30) days of the close of the hearing. Any necessary 
expenses for the services of the arbitrator shall be split equally between the parties. If either party 
desires an official verbatim record of an arbitration proceeding, it may cause such a record to be made, 
providing it pays for the record and makes copies available without charge to the other party and to 
the arbitrator. Each party shall be responsible for compensating its own representatives or witnesses, 
subject to changes in relevant case law and in accordance with Article 24 Savings Clause. The names of 
any witnesses to be used in arbitration by either party shall be made known to the other at least 
seventy‐two (72) hours prior to the arbitration hearing. 

  
19.7.8  Arbitrator’s Decision 
The decision of the arbitrator, if arrived at pursuant to the provisions of this contract, shall be final and 
binding upon the parties. 

  
19.8   Informal Discussion Permitted  
Nothing in this article is intended to preclude or prohibit informal discussion of a potential grievance between 
an employee and the immediate supervisor, provided that the time limits set forth herein are adhered to. 
 
19.9   Confidentiality 
All proceedings, meetings, and discussions related to grievances shall be limited in attendance to the parties 
and their designated representatives. All documents and information relative to the grievance and resolution 
are exempt from public disclosure to the extent allowed under the public records law, until the conclusion of 
the final proceeding. 
  
19.10   Absence from Work Station 
Except for the provisions of Article 19.7.7, union stewards representing employees or the Union at the 
meetings and hearings provided for in this article shall be permitted, after notice to the immediate supervisor, 
to leave their assigned work areas without loss of pay during their attendance at such meetings or hearings. 
 
 
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 69



41	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 20: NO STRIKE OR LOCKOUT 
 
20.1  Strike Prohibited 
During the life of this Agreement, the Union and its members, as individuals or as a group, will not initiate, 
cause, permit, participate in or join any strike, work stoppage, slow down, picketing or any other restriction of 
work. Employees in the bargaining unit, given the opportunity to confer with a supervisor while acting in the 
course of their employment, shall not honor any picket line when called upon to cross such picket line in the 
line of duty. Disciplinary action, including discharge, may be taken by the City against any employee or 
employees engaging in a violation of this article.  

 
20.2  Union’s Duty 
In the event of a strike, work stoppage, slow down, picketing, observation of a picket line or other restriction 
of work in any form, either on the basis of individual choice or collective employee conduct, the Union will 
immediately upon notification make reasonable attempts to secure an immediate and orderly return to work. 
 
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 70



42	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 21: OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT 
 
21.1   Approval to Engage in Outside Employment 
Bargaining unit employees may not engage in outside employment that conflicts with the nature of the City’s 
mission, conducts business with the City of Newberg, or otherwise interferes with the employee's ability to 
perform according to established standards of performance and work rules. An employee also may not 
conduct business connected to outside employment during scheduled hours of work at the City of Newberg. 
An employee must receive authorization prior to engaging in outside employment. Any employee who wishes 
to engage in outside employment must submit a completed “Outside Employment” form (Appendix F of the 
City Personnel Manual) to the Division Manager. If the City, in its discretion, determines that the outside 
employment does not create a conflict, it will approve authorization of the request and place the Outside 
Employment form in the employee's Personnel File. If the City does not approve an outside employment 
request, the Union reserves the right to meet and discuss the rationale for the City's decision. The City has the 
final say and the decision is not grievable. 
 
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 71



43	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 22: WORKING CONDITIONS AND SAFETY 
 

22.1   Safety  
The City and employees agree to abide by federal and state safety regulations per the Oregon Administrative 
Rules. Unsafe practices and conditions shall be immediately called to the attention of the employee’s 
immediate supervisor and/or an available supervisor. Once substantiated by the City, the unsafe condition 
shall be remedied as fully as possible. The City shall not discipline or in any manner discriminate against any 
employee who, in good faith and for cause, reports the existence of an unsafe condition or practice to the 
City. If an employee refuses to work due to a good faith belief and for cause evidence of unsafe working 
conditions, after following the proper reporting of unsafe conditions as outlined above, the City agrees to not 
subject the employee to discipline. If the City fails to remedy the situation in a reasonable amount of time, the 
employee will not be penalized for reporting the unsafe condition. However, if the City examines the condition 
and deems it safe, the City can require the employee to perform the work.  

 
22.2   Uniforms and Protective Clothing  

22.2.1  Provided Uniform Items 
The City shall provide uniform items required for the position, including but not limited to shirts, 
jackets, vests, coveralls, gloves, safety glasses, rain gear, steel toed rubber boots, hats and replacement 
items as authorized.   

 
22.2.2   Employees’ Choices 
Employees should have choice in fit of apparel, i.e. correct sizes. If needed for the employee’s position, 
not more than every twelve (12) months, the City shall reimburse the employee up to $125.00 for the 
purchase of one pair of ANSI‐approved safety‐toed boots/shoes as authorized.  
 

22.3   Clean up Time 
Whenever it is essential for employees to clean up or change clothes before being presentable upon leaving 
work, the employee shall be granted adequate personal clean up time prior to the end of each work shift. The 
City shall provide the required facilities for the employee’s clean up time. Work schedules shall be arranged so 
that employees may take advantage of this provision where it is applicable. Neither party to this contract shall 
construe “clean up time” to mean “quitting early time,” “leave early time,” or coming in early from the field. 
 
22.4   Tools and Equipment 
Providing safety equipment and personal protective equipment is the City’s responsibility. The City shall 
provide tools, except in Fleet Services where employees may elect to use pre‐authorized personally owned 
tools.  
 
22.5   Travel 
Employees shall make every effort to travel as economically as practical. The City shall use a reasonableness 
test to evaluate whether employee proposed travel expenses are economical under the circumstances. 
Distances more than seventy (70) miles from Newberg, shall be considered for hotel stays, either on the night 
before or after a required class or training. The City has discretion to provide a City‐owned vehicle for the 
travel, or to authorize the employee to use a personal vehicle. If, by mutual agreement, the employee uses a 
personal vehicle, the City shall reimburse the employee at the rate determined by the Internal Revenue 
Service. If the City requests that the employee use a City‐owned vehicle, but the employee chooses to drive a 
personal vehicle, the City will not reimburse for travel. Drive time to required classes is paid roundtrip.  
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 72



44	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

22.6  Personnel Rules and Regulations 
The City agrees to make this contract available to each employee now in the bargaining unit, through 
electronic means, within sixty (60) days of full execution of this contract and to furnish each new employee 
with a copy of this contract and the City’s Personnel Rules and Regulations at the time of appointment. A 
printed copy of the contract will be made available at the employee’s request in the Human Resources Office 
and thirty (30) copies will be made available to the Local President. The cost of printing and assembling the 
contract will be borne by the City. The City shall furnish the Union with a copy of the City’s Personnel Rules 
and Regulations and furnish copies of any and all amendments thereto from time to time.  

 
22.7   Vehicle Safety 
The parties recognize that possession of a valid Commercial Driver’s License (CDL) or driver’s license is an 
essential job function for a number of City positions. If an employee holds a position in a classification that 
requires a valid driver’s license, and his/her license is non‐renewed, suspended or revoked, that person will be 
subject to termination due to failure to maintain minimum qualifications. An exception to this is if the 
employee temporarily loses his/ her driver’s license for a traffic violation, or their CDL lapses, the employee 
can apply accrued leave and other compensatory time, or if the City, without creating an operational 
disturbance can find alternative work duties, the City and the employee will bridge the gap, up to sixty (60) 
days. Employees are obligated to notify their employer immediately if their license is invalid or suspended.  
 
22.8  City to Bear Cost of Commercial Driver’s License Requirement 
The City shall bear any additional costs associated with a required Commercial Driver’s License. Should an 
employee allow their CDL to expire or it is revoked, any re‐instatement fee shall be the responsibility of the 
employee. 
 
22.8   Impairing Medications 
If an employee is taking any medication that has a warning label indicating it may cause impairments when 
driving or operating equipment and the employee’s job duties include driving or operating equipment, the 
employee shall notify the Human Resource Office before reporting to work.  
 
22.10   Inclement Weather 
The parties acknowledge that a majority of the bargaining unit qualify as essential personnel/first responders 
and will likely be required to report to duty in times of inclement weather. In the event that the City decides to 
close operations due to inclement weather or hazardous conditions, the City shall pay non‐first responder 
employees as if they worked their full shift that day. Employees who work in inclement weather shall be paid 
overtime or compensatory time for all hours worked on those days. Essential personnel required to report to 
work in inclement weather, when the City Manager has closed the City, shall receive  pay at time and one half 
for actual hours worked that day. Also, non‐first responder employees who have reported to their assigned 
shift prior to the City Manager closing the City shall receive overtime or compensatory time for the actual 
hours worked. 
 
 
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 73



45	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 23: JOINT LABOR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 
23.1   Membership 
A Joint Labor Management Committee is hereby established to serve as a mechanism for dialogue between 
the parties and as a vehicle to discuss issues of mutual concern to the parties. The parties agree to meet at 
least two times per calendar year. The parties have the authority to create additional subcommittees 
underneath the auspices of the Joint Labor Management Committee, as the parties may deem appropriate. 
The Joint Labor Management Committee shall be composed of eight members, with four members appointed 
by the Union and four members appointed by the City including the Union’s representative and the City’s 
Human Resources Manager. Permanent or temporary membership on the Committee may be expanded by 
the mutual agreement of the Union and the City. Should the Joint Labor Management Committee meet during 
normal work hours, no bargaining unit member of the Committee shall suffer any loss of pay as a result 
thereof. 
  
23.2   Issues 
The parties agree that the Joint Labor Management Committee, and its subcommittees, as appropriate, will 
thoroughly examine and discuss the issues that have been jointly identified and any new issues that later are 
identified by the parties. It is intended that each issue will be thoroughly explored so that the ramifications 
and impacts of each issue are understood by the Committee members. The Joint Labor Management 
Committee shall have no authority to review the merits or adjust specific employee grievances. Subject to the 
deliberation of the subcommittees, or the Joint Labor Management Committee itself, recommendations may 
be issued to the Union’s leadership or membership, as appropriate, and to the City Manager or City Council, as 
appropriate.  
 
 
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 74



46	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 24: SAVINGS CLAUSE 
 
24.1  Remainder of Contract Enforceable and Duty to Bargain Replacement Language 
Should any article, section, provision, or portion thereof of this Agreement be held unlawful or unenforceable 
by any court of competent jurisdiction or become unlawful through a change in applicable state or federal law, 
only the specific article, section, provision, or portion thereof will be invalidated. The remainder of the 
Agreement will still be given full force and effect and remain binding on the parties. The parties agree to meet 
promptly in order to bargain replacement language for any part of this Agreement that is held to be unlawful.   
 
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 75



47	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

ARTICLE 25: COMPLETE AGREEMENT/PAST PRACTICES/SEVERABILITY 
 
25.1 Sole and Complete Agreement 
This bargaining agreement incorporates the sole and complete Agreement between the City and the Union 
resulting from negotiations held pursuant to the provisions of ORS 243.650 et. seq. (PECBA). It is 
acknowledged that during negotiations which resulted in this Agreement, each and all had the unlimited right 
and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject matter appropriate for collective 
bargaining and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of that 
right and opportunity are set forth in this Agreement. 
 
25.2 Obligation to Bargain During Life of Agreement 
The City and the Union, for the life of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waive the right, if 
any, and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any subject or 
matter, even though such subjects or matters may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of 
either or both parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement. It shall not be modified in whole 
or in part except by another written instrument duly executed by the parties.  
 
25.3 Collective Bargaining Agreement Prevails 
All matters not prescribed by the language of this Agreement may be administered for its duration by the City 
in accordance with the City Personnel Rules and Regulations. In the event of a conflict between Personnel 
Rules and this Agreement, the provisions of this Agreement shall prevail.  
 
   

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 76



48	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

  ARTICLE 26:  DURATION   

 
26.1  Term	
This Agreement shall commence upon execution by all parties, except where specifically noted as to the COLA 
for the first year of this Agreement (Article 6.1.1), and remain in full force and effect until December 31, 2014.	
	
26.2   Notification of Intent to Negotiate Successor Agreement	
Either party must notify the other party, in writing, no later than July 1, 2014, of its intention to negotiate a 
successor agreement, in which event the negotiations shall commence not later than thirty (30) days after the 
giving of said notice. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have set their hand at the date indicated by their signature. This 
Agreement shall be deemed fully executed when all signatures have been obtained. 

     
   
City of Newberg PW Employee Union     City of Newberg 
AFSCME Local 1569         
 

 

             ________                    
Karen Tarmichael, Bargaining Team    Date    Bob Andrews, Mayor         Date 
 
 
             ________                    
Mike Conway, Bargaining Team     Date    Dan Danicic, City Manager       Date 
              Authorized by Resolution  
              No. 2013‐3028 
               
             ________       
Craig Pack, Bargaining Team     Date    Approved as to Legal Sufficiency: 

 
 

                                
              Terrence D. Mahr          Date  

City Attorney 
               ________ 

Justin St. James        Date 
Council Representative AFSCME        

              

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 77



	

49	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

APPENDIX A  
Wage Scale Beginning January 2013 

City of Newberg AFSCME PW Bargaining Unit 

	

2013
COLA Jan - 2013 2.5% STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP

Prior Step # A B C D E F
Position                    ConversioStep # 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
Months of Service (generally) 0 12 24 36 48 60 72 84 96 108 120
Wastewater Systems Supervisor 154 4,303 4,411 4,521 4,634 4,750 4,869 4,991 5,116 5,244 5,375 5,509
Environmental Technician 148 4,004 4,104 4,207 4,312 4,420 4,531 4,644 4,760 4,879 5,001 5,126
Fleet Maintenance Supervisor 148 4,004 4,104 4,207 4,312 4,420 4,531 4,644 4,760 4,879 5,001 5,126
Regulation Compliance Specialist 148 4,004 4,104 4,207 4,312 4,420 4,531 4,644 4,760 4,879 5,001 5,126
Sr Plant Mechanic 148 4,004 4,104 4,207 4,312 4,420 4,531 4,644 4,760 4,879 5,001 5,126
WTS Senior Operator 148 4,004 4,104 4,207 4,312 4,420 4,531 4,644 4,760 4,879 5,001 5,126
Crew Chief 144 3,815 3,910 4,008 4,108 4,211 4,316 4,424 4,535 4,648 4,764 4,883
Pretreatment Technician 144 3,815 3,910 4,008 4,108 4,211 4,316 4,424 4,535 4,648 4,764 4,883
Op Lab Tech 2 140 3,642 3,733 3,826 3,922 4,020 4,121 4,224 4,330 4,438 4,549 4,663
Plant Mechanic 1 140 3,642 3,733 3,826 3,922 4,020 4,121 4,224 4,330 4,438 4,549 4,663
Public Works Technician 140 3,642 3,733 3,826 3,922 4,020 4,121 4,224 4,330 4,438 4,549 4,663
TS Operator 2 140 3,642 3,733 3,826 3,922 4,020 4,121 4,224 4,330 4,438 4,549 4,663
Facilities Maintenance Supervisor 136 3,475 3,562 3,651 3,742 3,836 3,932 4,030 4,131 4,234 4,340 4,449
Utility Technician 2 136 3,475 3,562 3,651 3,742 3,836 3,932 4,030 4,131 4,234 4,340 4,449
Mechanic 136 3,475 3,562 3,651 3,742 3,836 3,932 4,030 4,131 4,234 4,340 4,449
Utility Technician 1 132 3,322 3,405 3,490 3,577 3,666 3,758 3,852 3,948 4,047 4,148 4,252
Op Lab Tech 1 132 3,322 3,405 3,490 3,577 3,666 3,758 3,852 3,948 4,047 4,148 4,252
Operator 1 132 3,322 3,405 3,490 3,577 3,666 3,758 3,852 3,948 4,047 4,148 4,252
Facility Maintenance 128 3,121 3,199 3,279 3,361 3,445 3,531 3,619 3,709 3,802 3,897 3,994
Utility Worker 128 3,121 3,199 3,279 3,361 3,445 3,531 3,619 3,709 3,802 3,897 3,994
Secretary PT 122 16.61 17.02 17.45 17.88 18.33 18.79 19.26 19.74 20.23 20.74 21.26
Secretary  121 2,912 2,985 3,060 3,137 3,215 3,295 3,377 3,461 3,548 3,637 3,728
Groundskeeper 113 2,646 2,712 2,780 2,850 2,921 2,994 3,069 3,146 3,225 3,306 3,389
Laborer 1 & 2 Job Titles Changed to Utility Technician 1 & 2

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 78



50	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

 

APPENDIX A, Continued 
Wage Scale Beginning January 2014 

City of Newberg AFSCME PW Bargaining Unit 

 

2014
COLA Jan - 2014 2.0% STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP STEP
Position Grade # 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
Months of Service (generally) 0 12 24 36 48 60 72 84 96 108 120
Wastewater Systems Supervisor 154 4,389 4,499 4,611 4,726 4,844 4,965 5,089 5,216 5,346 5,480 5,617
Environmental Technician 148 4,084 4,186 4,291 4,398 4,508 4,621 4,737 4,855 4,976 5,100 5,228
Fleet Maintenance Supervisor 148 4,084 4,186 4,291 4,398 4,508 4,621 4,737 4,855 4,976 5,100 5,228
Regulation Compliance Specialist 148 4,084 4,186 4,291 4,398 4,508 4,621 4,737 4,855 4,976 5,100 5,228
Sr Plant Mechanic 148 4,084 4,186 4,291 4,398 4,508 4,621 4,737 4,855 4,976 5,100 5,228
WTS Senior Operator 148 4,084 4,186 4,291 4,398 4,508 4,621 4,737 4,855 4,976 5,100 5,228
Crew Chief 144 3,891 3,989 4,089 4,191 4,296 4,403 4,513 4,626 4,742 4,861 4,983
Pretreatment Technician 144 3,891 3,989 4,089 4,191 4,296 4,403 4,513 4,626 4,742 4,861 4,983
Op Lab Tech 2 140 3,715 3,808 3,903 4,001 4,101 4,204 4,309 4,417 4,527 4,640 4,756
Plant Mechanic 1 140 3,715 3,808 3,903 4,001 4,101 4,204 4,309 4,417 4,527 4,640 4,756
Public Works Technician 140 3,715 3,808 3,903 4,001 4,101 4,204 4,309 4,417 4,527 4,640 4,756
TS Operator 2 140 3,715 3,808 3,903 4,001 4,101 4,204 4,309 4,417 4,527 4,640 4,756
Facilities Maintenance Supervisor 136 3,544 3,633 3,724 3,817 3,912 4,010 4,110 4,213 4,318 4,426 4,537
Utility Technician 2 136 3,544 3,633 3,724 3,817 3,912 4,010 4,110 4,213 4,318 4,426 4,537
Mechanic 136 3,544 3,633 3,724 3,817 3,912 4,010 4,110 4,213 4,318 4,426 4,537
Utility Technician 1 132 3,388 3,473 3,560 3,649 3,740 3,834 3,930 4,028 4,129 4,232 4,338
Op Lab Tech 1 132 3,388 3,473 3,560 3,649 3,740 3,834 3,930 4,028 4,129 4,232 4,338
Operator 1 132 3,388 3,473 3,560 3,649 3,740 3,834 3,930 4,028 4,129 4,232 4,338
Facility Maintenance 128 3,184 3,263 3,345 3,429 3,515 3,603 3,693 3,785 3,880 3,977 4,076
Utility Worker 128 3,184 3,263 3,345 3,429 3,515 3,603 3,693 3,785 3,880 3,977 4,076
Secretary PT 122 16.94 17.36 17.79 18.24 18.70 19.16 19.64 20.13 20.64 21.15 21.68
Secretary  121 2,970 3,045 3,121 3,199 3,279 3,361 3,445 3,531 3,619 3,709 3,802
Groundskeeper 113 2,698 2,766 2,835 2,906 2,979 3,053 3,129 3,207 3,287 3,369 3,453
Laborer 1 & 2 Job Titles Changed to Utility Technician 1 & 2

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 79



	

51	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

APPENDIX B 
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) 

By and Between 
The City of Newberg and the AFSCME Newberg PW Union 

RE: Limited Supervisory Duties of Lead Workers/Crew Chiefs 
 
WHEREAS, since the City and the Union have reached an agreement regarding the definition of the bargaining 
unit; 
 
WHEREAS, the definition includes some positions which have or may have limited supervisory duties; 
 
WHEREAS, the agreement reached commits the parties to create language to ensure the parties continue to 
limit the supervisory duties required of those positions which the City voluntarily recognized as positions 
included in the bargaining unit; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the parties have reached an agreement and reduced it to writing in this MOA, that 
supervisory duties shall be subject to the following limitations as agreed by all parties: 
 
DUTIES: Lead Worker/Crew Chief positions involve certain limited oversight and administrative duties which 
are deemed not to warrant a full supervisory classification. These duties include, but are not limited to: laying 
out the work for other employees, balancing the work, directing the work, reviewing the work and employee 
conduct for adherence to standards and rules, and making such reports as may be required to supervisory 
employees. Lead Workers/Crew Chief positions shall spend a substantial portion of their time (fifty percent 
(50%) or more) in performing non‐supervisory duties. The Lead Work/Crew Chief will not effectively 
recommend hiring or terminating employees. An employee promoted into a Lead Worker/Crew Chief position 
will not impose formal discipline, i.e. a letter of reprimand or above. Lead Workers/Crew Chiefs may issue oral 
counseling and/or reprimands and may recommend performance action plans where appropriate. Lead 
Workers/Crew Chiefs maybe present when discipline is issued, at the discretion of the supervisor. Lead 
Workers/Crew Chiefs may be asked to prepare initial performance evaluations and may be requested to sit‐in 
on the deliverance of the evaluation, at the discretion of the supervisor. Lead Workers/Crew Chiefs will not be 
responsible for delivering performance evaluations. 3  
 
This MOA supersedes any previous job descriptions or assignment of duties prior to the date of this 
agreement. 
 

IT IS AGREED, this ______________ day of _______________, 2013. 
 
For the City of Newberg          For the AFSCME Newberg PW Bargaining Unit 
 
__________________________________      _________________________________ 
Dan Danicic, Newberg City Manager        Justin St. James, Council Representative AFSCME 

                _________________________________ 
                AFSCME President 

																																																								
3	Appendix	D	is	an	exception	to	this	MOA.	

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 80



52	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

APPENDIX C 
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) 

By and Between 
The City of Newberg and the AFSCME Newberg PW Union 

RE: Contracting out of Bargaining Unit Work 
 
WHEREAS, the City and the Union wish to avoid unnecessary litigation regarding the issue of contracting and 
subcontracting out work performed by bargaining unit members; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the parties have reached agreement and reduced it to writing in this MOA, that prior to the 
City of Newberg publishing an RFP for the contracting or subcontracting out of exclusive bargaining unit work, 
the parties shall follow the procedures set forth below: 
  

1. Contracting Out. The City and the Union agree to negotiate in good faith the impacts of any 
decision to contract or subcontract out exclusive bargaining unit work pursuant to ORS 243.698. 
Further the City will agree to meet and discuss any decision to contract or subcontract out work 
currently performed by bargaining unit members, providing the Union an opportunity to submit 
alternative proposals. The decision as to whether or not work is ultimately contracted out shall be 
at the sole discretion of the City; however, no such decision shall be implemented until the City has 
fulfilled its obligation to bargain the impacts, concluding ninety (90) days from the date of the 
original notice of the Union.  

2. Process. The City will agree to notify the Union forty‐five (45) days or more prior to the issuance of 
any RFP relating to the contracting or subcontracting out of work currently performed by 
bargaining unit members. Upon such receipt the Union shall have fourteen (14) days to file a 
demand to bargain notice with the City. The parties will make a good faith effort to meet within ten 
(10) days of the City's receipt of the Union's demand to bargain and if unable to do so, the City will 
notify the Union as to the reasons for the delay. If after thirty (30) days the parties have been 
unable to reach agreement, the State Conciliator of the Employment Relations Board will be 
contacted to request that a mediator be assigned or a mutually agreed alternate mediator, will be 
contacted. The parties may mutually agree to continue bargaining and forgo mediation. The cost of 
the mediator shall be split between the parties. The process shall conclude after ninety (90) days, 
pursuant to ORS 243.968. Agreement to and the following of this out‐lined process by the City shall 
constitute full and complete satisfaction of the City's duty to bargain the issue under ORS Chapter 
243.4 

 
IT IS AGREED, this ______________ day of _______________, 2013. 
 
For the City of Newberg          For the AFSCME Newberg PW Bargaining Unit 
 
 
_____________________________________    _________________________________ 
Dan Danicic, Newberg City Manager        Justin St. James, Council Rep., AFSCME 

                _________________________________ 
                AFSCME President 

																																																								
4	The	City	agrees	as	part	of	the	full	contract	settlement	to	make	every	effort	to	fill	the	Grounds	Keeper	vacancy	through	a	regular	recruitment	process.	

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 81



53	
City	of	Newberg:	Collective	Bargaining	Agreement	

APPENDIX D 
Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) By and Between 

The City of Newberg and the AFSCME Newberg PW Union 
RE: Current Incumbent of the Wastewater System Supervisor 

 
WHEREAS, since the City and the Union have reached an agreement regarding the definition of the bargaining 
unit; 
 
WHEREAS, the definition includes some positions which have or may have supervisory duties;  
 
WHEREAS, the current incumbent5 occupies a position that may or may not be a supervisory position 
statutorily exempt from the Union under PECBA; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the parties have reached an agreement and reduced it to writing in this MOA, that the City 
and Union will make a special exception for the current incumbent, as the Wastewater Treatment System 
Supervisor. The City and the Union agree to abstain from unit clarification proceedings to determine if the 
Wastewater Treatment System Supervisor position is exempt until the current incumbent separates from the 
position.  
 
This agreement is specific to the current incumbent and as such will not be precedent setting in any way 
relative to any subsequent position and/or employee who may occupy the incumbent’s position or a like 
position. 
 
Both parties understand that the current incumbent’s work duties include, and will continue to include the 
authority to: plan, assign and review the work of subordinates, hire, transfer, suspend, lay off, recall, promote, 
discharge, assign, reward or discipline other employees, or responsibly to direct them, or to adjust their 
grievances, or effectively to recommend such action. The current incumbent may issue oral counseling and/or 
reprimands, may recommend performance action plans where appropriate, deliver performance evaluations, 
and administer and/or effectively recommend discipline up to and including termination.  
 
FURTHERMORE, when the incumbent separates from the position as Wastewater Treatment System 
Supervisor, the Union understands that the City will seek a unit clarification with the Employment Relations 
Board as the City believes the position to be statutorily exempt from the Union under PECBA. 
 
This MOA supersedes any previous job agreements regarding the current incumbent or his current position. 
 
IT IS AGREED, this ______________ day of _______________, 2013. 
 
For the City of Newberg          For the AFSCME Newberg PW Bargaining Unit 

 

__________________________________      _________________________________ 
Dan Danicic, Newberg City Manager        Justin St. James, AFSCME 

                _________________________________ 
                AFSCME President 

																																																								
5	The	City	and	the	Union	recognize	that	Troy	Sanders	is	the	current	incumbent	and	this	agreement	exclusively	applies	to	him.	

                       Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution 2013-3028 
            (Total pages: 55) 

Page 82



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3029 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: February 4, 2013 
Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 
No. No.  No. 2013-3029 

SUBJECT:  Declaring Council District No. 3 vacant, 
begin the process to appoint person to fill vacancy, 
and declare that Councilor Denise Bacon continues 
to serve in the position until such time as a qualified 
successor assumes the office. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Motion: Terrence D. Mahr, City Attorney 
Dept.: City Attorney’s Office 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Adopt Resolution No. 2013-3029 declaring vacant the city council position from District No. 3 and begin the 
process for selecting a qualified person to fill the position, as well as declaring that Councilor Denise Bacon 
continues to serve until a successor qualifies and assumes the office. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
Spencer Haley was nominated for Council District No. 3, and his name was placed on the ballot for the 
November 6, 2012, biennial general election. After Mr. Haley submitted his name, was qualified to be on the 
ballot, and the ballot was filed with the County Clerk’s Office for publication, Mr. Haley’s job 
responsibilities changed. He would no longer be able to fulfill his duties as a city council member because of 
this change. It was too late to remove his name from the ballot. 
 
Mr. Haley made his situation known publicly. Because his name was the only name on the ballot for that 
council position, he received a majority of the votes cast for that position. It was well-known that Mr. 
Haley’s intent was not to assume the duties of the office.  
 
The Charter further provides that the term of office for a person elected to the Council begins the first 
Council meeting of the year immediately after the general election in which the person is elected and 
continues until the successor qualifies and assumes the office. The term is normally a four (4) year term. As 
the successor in this situation would normally be Mr. Haley, who will not qualify and assume the office, 
Councilor Denise Bacon will continue to serve in that council position pursuant to the Charter.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A. 
 
STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT:  
 
The Council will conduct a process by which it will seek qualified persons to be appointed to the position 
that is vacant due to Mr. Haley not qualifying for office. The present Councilor Denise Bacon would be 
qualified to be appointed by the Council to that position if she is willing to serve.  

Page 83



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3029 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3029 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CITY COUNCIL POSITION FOR DISTRICT 
NO. 3 TO BE VACANT; DECLARING THAT COUNCILOR DENISE BACON 
CONTINUES TO SERVE IN THE POSITION; AND DIRECTING THE MAYOR 
TO BEGIN THE PROCESS OF FINDING A QUALIFIED PERSON TO BE 
APPOINTED  TO THE VACANT COUNCIL POSITION 

 
 

RECITALS: 
 
1. The City Council members are nominated from district and elected to four (4) year terms pursuant to 

Section 25 of the Newberg City Charter. Three (3) city councilors are elected at each biennial general 
election. The last biennial general election was held on November 6, 2012.  

 
2. Spencer Haley was nominated and qualified from city council position District No. 3. He was the 

only candidate on the ballot. He became aware of circumstances that would not allow him, if elected 
to assume the duties as a city council member. He made that known. 
 

3. At the time Mr. Haley became aware of his employment circumstances, it was too late to change the 
ballot. His name was the only one listed on the ballot for Council District No. 3, and he received the 
majority of the votes cast for that position.  
 

4. Mr. Haley did not take the Oath of Office on January 7, 2013, and has communicated that he will not 
be assuming the duties of city councilor. 
 

5. The City Council, pursuant to Section 32 of the Newberg City Charter entitled “Vacancies,” may 
declare a position vacant if the incumbent fails to qualify for the office within ten (10) days of the 
time of the term the office is to begin. 
 

6. The term for an elected city council member begins the first council meeting of the year immediately 
after the election. It is for a four- (4-) year term. However, Section 30 of the Newberg City Charter 
entitled “Terms” provides that the council member “continues until successor qualifies and assumes 
the office.” 
 

7. Denise Bacon presently serves in the council position for Council District No. 3. However, she did 
not run for re-election in the biennial general election held on November 6, 2012. 
 

8. Council member Denise Bacon has graciously agreed to continue to serve as a Council Member for 
Council District No. 3 until a qualified successor assumes this office. 
 

9. The City Council is the governing body that fills vacancies by whatever process the City Council 
deems most applicable. The vacancy is filled by appointment of a majority of the remaining council 
members and runs until the expiration of the term of office of the last person elected to that office, as 
provided for in Section 33 of the City Charter.  

Page 84



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3029 PAGE 2 

 
10. Section 28 of the City Charter provides that the City Council is the final judge of the elections and 

qualifications of its members.  
 

 
THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 
 
1. City Charter Interpretations. The City Council interprets its City Charter and is the final judge 

concerning the election and qualifications of its members. As such, the City Council makes the 
following interpretations, judgments, and Findings of Fact:  
 

a. Excerpts from Charter. Attached to this resolution is Chapter VII of the City 
Charter dealing with Elections, which is marked as Exhibit “A” and by this reference 
incorporated. 

 
b. Oath of Office. Spencer Haley was duly elected to the position of council person of 

the City of Newberg from District No. 3. However, Mr. Haley has indicated publicly 
that due to his professional business responsibilities, he will not be able to fulfill his 
duties as city council member and did not take the Oath of Office on January 7, 2013. 

 
c. Incumbent. Under Section 32 of the City Charter entitled “Vacancy,” Spencer Haley 

should be considered the incumbent for District No. 3. 
 

d. Qualifying within Ten (10) Days. Mr. Haley failed to qualify for office within ten 
(10) days from the time the term of office began by not taking the Oath of Office on 
January 7, 2013. Therefore, the City Council declares the position vacant and its 
intention to appoint a person to fill the remainder of Mr. Haley’s four (4) year term. 

 
e. Term of Office. The term of the office being declared vacant will begin upon the 

qualification and assumption of office by the person appointed by the City Council 
and shall continue for the four (4) successive years (January 2013-December 2016) 
and further until the next person is elected, qualifies, and assumes the office.  

 
f. Appointment to Fill Vacancy. The filling of vacancies will be by appointment by a 

majority of the remaining city council members and appointment will be to the 
expiration of the term of office, which Spencer Haley was elected to serve. That term 
will normally expire December 31, 2016, but will continue until the person appointed 
to office qualifies and assumes the office. 

 
g. Councilor Bacon Continues. Councilor Bacon is duly elected city council member 

from District No. 3. and will continue in this position until the qualified successor is 
appointed and assumes the office. 
 

h. Councilor Bacon Qualifies. Councilor Denise Bacon is qualified to be appointed to 
the position for the term that normally begins in January of 2013 and runs for four 
(4) years. (The term that Mr. Haley was elected to serve.) 
 

i. Councilor Bacon Qualifies to Votes. In voting to fill the vacancy, Councilor Bacon 

Page 85



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3029 PAGE 3 

will be counted as a member of the remaining city council members as she will still 
occupy the position even though for purposes of reappointment for this upcoming 
term, the position has been declared vacant. 

 
j. Judgment of the City Council. Except for one circumstance concerning 

employment, the City Council is the final authority in judging the election and 
qualifications of its members. This is the judgment of the City Council. 

 
2. Vacancy. The City Council declares the position for City Councilor for District No. 3 for the term, 

which would normally begin in January of 2013 through December 31, 2016, vacant in accordance 
with City Charter, Section 32(b)(1).  
 

3. Continues to Serve. The City Council declares that in accordance with Section 30, entitled “Defining 
Terms,” Councilor Denise Bacon will continue to serve until her qualified successor is appointed and 
assumes office.  
 

4. Re-appointment. City Council declares that Councilor Denise Bacon is eligible for re-appointment to 
the position. 
 

5. Authority of Council. City Council authorizes the Mayor, working with administration, to begin the 
process of soliciting persons who might be qualified to fill the vacancy and selecting a person to fill 
the vacancy in accordance with the City Charter.  
 

6. Selection Process. The Mayor may use any selection process he deems appropriate.  
 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: February 5, 2013. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 4th day of February, 2013. 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Daniel Danicic, City Recorder 

 
ATTEST by the Mayor this 7th day of February, 2013. 
 
 
____________________ 
Bob Andrews, Mayor 

Page 86



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3029 PAGE 4 

Exhibit “A” 
to Resolution No. 2013-3029 

(Total Pages: 3) 
 
 

Chapter VII of the Newberg City Charter: 
 
 

Chapter VII 
ELECTIONS 

Section 25 City Councilors. 
The term of a city councilor in office when this Charter is adopted is the term for which the city councilor was 
elected. At each general election after the adoption, three city councilors will be elected for four-year terms. 

Section 26 Mayor. 
The term of the mayor in office when this Charter is adopted continues to the beginning of the first odd numbered 
year after adoption. At every other general election after the adoption, a mayor shall be elected for a four-year 
term. 

Section 27 State Law. 
City elections must conform to state law except as this Charter or ordinances provide otherwise. All elections for 
city offices must be nonpartisan. 

Cross-reference: See Title 23 ORS pertaining to elections. 

Section 28 Qualifications. 
(a) The mayor and each city councilor must be a qualified elector under state law, and reside within the city for at 
least one year immediately before election or appointment to office. For the purpose of this section, “city” shall 
mean any area included in the corporate limits as of the date of the election. 

(b) The city shall be divided into six geographical areas representing as near as practical, the same number of 
electors. When this Charter section is adopted, the current six city district boundaries shall be the six district 
boundaries. The districts shall be reapportioned thereafter whenever the United States Census is taken and within 
a reasonable time after the data is available, or when the city so orders. Whenever the districts are reapportioned, 
the city councilor in office shall not lose their qualification for office by reason of the boundary change for the 
remainder of their term, unless otherwise disqualified. In addition to the other qualifications, the city councilor must 
have and maintain their residence in the district from which they were nominated during the term of their office, 
except as provided for in reapportionment. 

(c) Neither the mayor nor a city councilor may be employed by the city, unless the employment is substantially 
volunteer in nature. The municipal judge shall make the determination of whether employment is substantially 
volunteer. 

Page 87

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=23


 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3029 PAGE 5 

(d) No person may be a candidate at a single election for more than one city office. 

(e) Except as provided in subsection (c) of this section, the city council is the final judge of the election and 
qualifications of its members. 

Cross-reference: For qualified electors under state law, see ORS 247.020. 

Section 29 Nominations. 
The city council must adopt an ordinance prescribing the manner for a person to be nominated to run for mayor or 
a city councilor position. 

Section 30 Terms. 
The term of an officer elected at a general election begins at the first city council meeting of the year immediately 
after the election, and continues until the successor qualifies and assumes the office. 

Section 31 Oath. 
The mayor and each city councilor must swear or affirm to faithfully perform the duties of the office, support the 
constitutions and laws of the United States and Oregon, and the ordinances and Charter of the city. 

Cross-reference: This general provision is an actual oath which will be recited upon taking office by elected 
officials of the state. 

Section 32 Vacancies. 
The mayor or other city council office becomes vacant: 

(a) Upon the incumbent’s: 

(1) Death, 

(2) Adjudicated incompetence, or 

(3) Recall from the office. 

(b) Upon declaration by the city council after the incumbent’s: 

(1) Failure to qualify for the office within 10 days of the time the term of office is to begin, 

(2) Absence from the city for 30 days or from all city council meetings within a 60-day period, without city 
council consent, 

(3) Ceasing to reside in the city, 

Page 88

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=247.020


 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2013-3029 PAGE 6 

(4) Ceasing to reside within the district from which the city councilor was nominated, except as provided for 
in reapportionment; however, the city councilor shall remain in office until such time as the vacancy is filled, 
but in no event shall the time exceed 120 days, 

(5) Ceasing to be a qualified elector under state law, 

(6) Conviction, while in office, of a public offense punishable by loss of liberty, 

(7) Resignation from the office, or 

(8) Removal under Section 34(i). 

Cross-reference: For qualified electors under state law, see ORS 247.020. 

Section 33 Filling Vacancies. 
A mayor or city councilor vacancy will be filled by appointment by a majority of the remaining city council members. 
The appointee’s term of office runs from appointment until expiration of the term of office of the last person elected 
to that office. 

The Newberg Municipal Code is current through Ordinance 2757, passed December 17, 2012. 

Disclaimer: The City Recorder's Office has the official version of the Newberg Municipal Code. Users 
should contact the City Recorder's Office for ordinances passed subsequent to the ordinance cited above.  
 

Page 89

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=247.020

	City Council Agenda for 2/4/13
	Resolution No. 2013-3033 approving purchase of a replacement Vactor
	12/17/12 City Council meeting minutes
	1/7/13 City Council meeting minutes
	Resolution No. 2013-3028 ratifying the Public Works Collective Bargaining Agreement
	Resolution No. 2013-3029 declaring Council District No. 3 position vacant



